
 

1 
 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 16, 2024 
7:30 P.M. 

 
Meeting to be held at City Hall 

301 West Main Street 
 

AGENDA 
 
OPENING PRAYER: 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 2, 2024: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and 
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration 
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to 
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall 
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 
PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

 
1. Chief of Police Commendations.  Presentation of commendation awards to citizens Christine 

Ferguson and Serenity Fowler for their actions on December 19, 2023.  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
None. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Special Assessment District No. 2024-01.  Authorize Resolution No. 4 setting a public hearing for 

Monday, February 5, 2024 to receive citizen comment regarding Special Assessment District No. 
2024-01 for Stewart Street, from Shiawassee Street to Washington Street for reconstruction. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:   3.4, 3.7, 3.13  
 

2. Change Order – WWTP Improvements Project – Phase 1.  Approve Change Order No. 1 to the 
WWTP Improvements Project - Phase 1 contract with RCL Construction Co., Inc. increasing the 
contract amount by $73,672.00 for adjustments to pipe routing and the installation of new tees, 
hydrants, and valves, and authorize payment to the contractor up to $18,626,796.00. 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:    3.4, 3.7 



 

2 
 

3. MDOT Cost Sharing Agreement - Stewart Street Reconstruction.  Approve cost sharing agreement 
with the Michigan Department of Transportation for the reconstruction of Stewart Street from 
Shiawassee Street to Washington Street in the amount of $1,958,900.00 and further approve 
payment up to the contract amount upon presentation of an approved invoice(s). 
Master Plan Implementation Goals:   3.4, 3.7, 3.13  

 
4. Warrant No. 639.  Authorize Warrant No. 639 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 

Owosso Charter Township 
Quarterly Charge Back per  
2011 Water Agreement 

Water $17,039.14 

Caledonia Charter Township 
Quarterly Charge Back per  
2006 Water Agreement 

Water $39,325.03 

Total $56,364.17 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
1. Closed Session.  Consider holding closed session at the conclusion of the second session of Citizen 

Comments and Questions for the purpose of consulting with its attorney regarding trial or settlement 
strategy in connection with specific pending litigation.  
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 

1. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  December 2023 Building Department Report. 
2. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  December 2023 Code Violations Report. 
3. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  December 2023 Inspections Report. 
4. Tanya S. Buckelew, Planning & Building Director.  December 2023 Certificates Issued Report. 
5. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  December 2023 Police Report. 
6. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  December 2023 Fire Report. 
7. Downtown Development Authority.  Minutes of January 3, 2024. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

CLOSED SESSION    (if approved) 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, February 05, 2024 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2024 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2025 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2024 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2025 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing 
impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at 
the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals with disabilities requiring 
auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or emailing the following:  Owosso City 
Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. 
The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.    



PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT THE FOLLOWING MEETING  
CAN ONLY BE VIEWED VIRTUALLY 

 
The Owosso City Council will conduct an in-person meeting on January 16, 2024.  Citizens may view and listen 
to the meeting using the following link and phone numbers.   

 
OWOSSO CITY COUNCIL 

Tuesday, January 16, 2024 
at 7:30 p.m. 

 
The public joining the meeting via Zoom CANNOT participate in public comment. 

 
• Join Zoom Meeting:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87518995739?pwd=RHJMVnc4VVpiYmhxbWhXcklnSStvZz09 
 

• Meeting ID:  875 1899 5739 
• Password:  286466 

• One tap mobile 
 

 +13052241968,,87518995739#,,,,*286466# US 
 +13092053325,,87518995739#,,,,*286466# US 
 
Dial by your location 

 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

 
• For video instructions visit: 

 
o Signing up and Downloading Zoom https://youtu.be/qsy2Ph6kSf8 
o Joining a Zoom Meeting https://youtu.be/hIkCmbvAHQQ 
o Joining and Configuring Audio and Video https://youtu.be/-s76QHshQnY 

 
• Helpful notes for participants:    Helpful Hints 

• Meeting packets are published on the City of Owosso website  http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us 

Any person who wishes to contact members of the City Council to provide input or ask questions on any 
business coming before the Council on January 16, 2024 may do so by calling or e-mailing the City Clerk’s 
Office prior to the meeting at (989)725-0500 or city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. Contact information for individual 
Council members can be found on the City website at: http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Government/City-Council  

The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio recordings of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with 
disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals with 
disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or emailing 
the following:  Owosso City Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: (989) 725-0500; 
Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87518995739?pwd=RHJMVnc4VVpiYmhxbWhXcklnSStvZz09
https://youtu.be/qsy2Ph6kSf8
https://youtu.be/hIkCmbvAHQQ
https://youtu.be/-s76QHshQnY
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Portals/0/Files/Documents/CouncilVirtualMeetingNotice-HelpfulHints.pdf
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/Government/City-Council
file://coo-dc1/users$/AKKirkland/Documents/PublicNotices/city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us
http://www.ci.owosso.mi.us/


Draft 1 01-02-2024 

CITY OF OWOSSO  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF JANUARY 2, 2024        
7:30 P.M. 

VIRGINIA TEICH CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR ROBERT J. TEICH, JR. 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  PASTOR WARREN DAVIS 
    CORNERSTONE CHURCH 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: JOSH HALEY 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Robert J. Teich, Jr., Councilmembers Janae L. Fear, Jerome C. 

Haber, and Daniel A. Law. 
 
ABSENT: Mayor Pro-Tem Susan J. Osika, Councilmembers Emily S. Olson, and 

Nicholas L. Pidek. 
 

APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Fear to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Haber and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 18, 2023 
 
Motion by Councilmember Haber to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 18, 2023 
as presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
None. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Cheryl Farver, 414 Adams Street, said she is concerned about the city saying no one seems to take pride 
in their property any longer, that Joann Fabrics is closing and another dollar store is being proposed for 
that location, that taxes go up but the services don’t, and that it’s not her responsibility to report neighbors 
that violate the law.  She thanked Council for taking the time to listen to her. 
 
Tom Manke, 2910 W. M-21, said the New Years Eve Ball Drop event was wonderful, despite the dreary 
weather.  He announced the unveiling of the Thomas Dewey historical marker on Friday at 2:00 p.m.  
Lastly, he said he objects to the idea that two certain property owners seem to be getting all the grant 
money for downtown buildings. 



Draft 2 01-02-2024 

Eddie Urban, 601 Glenwood Avenue, said he was sad that JoAnn Fabrics is closing, he needs someone 
to do some mending for him, that there’s good and bad in every town, and lastly, he thanked the Mayor 
and Councilmember Law for seeing to it the guy wire was replaced on the telephone pole near his house. 
 
Joseph Moore, 304 Michigan Avenue, said there are new small businesses popping up in town and he 
encouraged the City to start a program to periodically highlight individual small businesses.  He also 
mentioned that the parking downtown is good. 
 
Responding to Ms. Farver’s comments, Mayor Teich said that Council receives a report each month of all 
the calls that were reported and addressed by City employees, estimating there are 400-500 reports per 
month.  He said the City does not have an employee dedicated solely to patrolling each and every mile of 
street for code enforcement violations.  If a violation is reported the City will initiate the code enforcement 
process, but unfortunately the City will never be a perfect place.  He also noted that, if in fact, Joann 
Fabrics is replaced by a dollar store that it would be the purview of the building owner, not the City. And 
lastly, he said that the City constantly works to attract new businesses to town.   
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Fear to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 

*Contract Amendment - Professional Services Agreement - Auditing Services Contract.  Approve 
Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement - Auditing Services Contract with Berthiaume 
& Co. CPAs increasing the first year of the contract by $7,800.00 for additional/extra accounting work and 
authorize payment to the vendor as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 01-2024 
 

AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO  
THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT – AUDIT SERVICES CONTRACT 

WITH BERTHIAUME & CO. CPAS 
 
WHEREAS, Owosso City Council approved a multiyear service contract with Berthiaume & Co. CPAs on 
May 1, 2023 for the provision of annual auditing services; and 
 
WHEREAS, as is typical of a first-year audit, the firm recommended several adjustments and 
reclassifications which came as the result of additional accounting work over and above the original 
scope of the contract; and  
 
WHEREAS, an amendment to the professional services agreement is being requested due to this extra 
audit and accounting work required for the annual audit/financial statement and single audit for the Fiscal 
Year Ending 6-30-2023.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OWOSSO, 
SHIAWASSEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN: 
 

FIRST: that the City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary, and in 
the public interest to improve and correct the city’s financial statements which resulted in 
23 recommended adjusting journal entries and 17 recommended reclassification entries. 

 
SECOND: that Amendment No. 2 to the Professional Services Agreement – Audit Services Contract 

is hereby approved, increasing the first year of the contract by the amount of $7,800.00, 
resulting in a first-year total of $41,100.00.  

 
THIRD: the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby instructed and authorized to sign the amendment, 

substantially in the form attached. 



Draft 3 01-02-2024 

 
FOURTH: the Accounts Payable department is authorized to submit payment to Berthiaume & Co. 

CPAs in an amount not to exceed $41,100.00 in the first year. 
 
FIFTH: the above expenses will be paid from various funds as budgeted. 

 
 

*Check Register – December 2023.  Affirm check disbursements totaling $2,468,520.10 through 
December 31, 2023. 
 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Fear, Haber, law, and Mayor Teich. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Olson and Pidek. 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
Warrant No. 638 
 
City Manager Nathan R. Henne briefly detailed the grant program, noting that this particular grant has 
been over a year in the making. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Fear to authorize Warrant No. 638 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 
Taphouse Specialty 
Meat Market LLC 

MEDC Match on Main Grant DDA $25,000.00 

 
Motion supported by Councilmember Law. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Law, Haber, Fear, and Mayor Teich. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Olson and Pidek. 
 
 
Election Inspector Pay Rate Amendment 
 
City Manager Henne explained the proposed increase will raise the wage paid to election workers to 
$15.00 per hour, noting this should help the City keep election workers as we move through a critical 
election year. 
 
Councilmember Fear asked whether she could vote on the item as she sometimes performs election work 
for the City.  City Attorney Scott J. Gould opined that if she is not under contract at the current time, she 
should be OK to vote.  City Manager Henne left the matter up to the Council.  No one expressed any 
objections. 



Draft 4 01-02-2024 

 
Motion by Councilmember Law to approve increasing pay rates for election inspectors as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 02-2024 
 

AUTHORIZING PAY INCREASES FOR ELECTION INSPECTORS 
 
WHEREAS, MCL 168.682 requires that election inspectors receive reasonable compensation for work 
performed during the course of an election; and  
 
WHEREAS, MCL 168.682 further requires said compensation be approved by the legislative body of the 
municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, inflation rates have increased dramatically, effectively reducing the pay earned by election 
inspectors; and 
 
WHEREAS, recent changes in election law have increased the responsibility levels of election inspectors; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, it is essential for the City to maintain a reliable group of quality election inspectors to 
administer elections within the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and appropriate to raise the wages paid to election inspectors so they may be 
fairly compensated for the work they perform. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
increase the pay rates for election inspectors as follows: 

 
Election Inspector   $15.00/hr. 
Election Inspector – Minor  $13.00/hr. 
Election Chairperson  $20.00/hr. 
Election Co-Chair   $18.00/hr. 
Receiving Board   $60.00 flat rate, 4 hours or less 

 
SECOND: the Accounts Payable and Payroll departments are authorized from this point forward to 

issue payment to certified election inspectors at the rates noted above. 
 
THIRD: the above expenses shall be charged to account nos. 101-262-702.400 and 101-262-

715.000. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Haber. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Fear, Haber, Law, and Mayor Teich. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Olson and Pidek. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 



Draft 5 01-02-2024 

Brad A. Barrett, Finance Director.  Financial Report – November 2023.  
Owosso Historical Commission.  Minutes of December 11, 2023. 
Historic District Commission.  Minutes of December 20, 2023. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Cheryl Farver, 414 Adams Street, thanked Mayor Teich for responding to her comments, but respectfully 
disagreed with him.  She went on to say that she feels disappointed in the way our city looks and that it 
will never get any better without effort, encouraging the City to find money to help neighborhoods 
improve.  She criticized the Council saying they seemed unconcerned that a long-time downtown 
business is closing. 
 
Tom Manke, 2910 W. M-21, suggested starting a neighborhood watch group to help the neighborhood.  
He also noted that the Joann Fabrics and Springrove Variety stores are both closing because the new 
owner of the building has raised the rent. 
 
Eddie Urban, 601 Glenwood Avenue, encouraged Ms. Farver to keep coming to meetings. 
 
Joseph Moore, 304 Michigan Avenue, said he really hoped the City would highlight a particular small 
business each week, saying it will encourage other people to start new businesses. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday, January 16, 2024 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2024 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2025 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2024 
Zoning Board of Appeals – Alternate – term expires June 30, 2025 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Councilmember Fear for adjournment at 8:18 p.m. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Haber and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
 
 
 

*Due to their length, text of marked items is not included in the minutes.  Full text of these documents is on 
file in the Clerk's Office. 
 



 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867‐2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 

 
 

 
DATE: January 16, 2024 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Clayton Wehner, Director of Engineering 
 
SUBJECT: Setting Public Hearing for Special Assessment Roll for Stewart Street Reconstruction 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
City staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 4 which sets the second public hearing for the Stewart 
Street Reconstruction Project.   
 
 
BACKGROUND:    
 
This public hearing is intended to provide affected residents with the opportunity to comment regarding 
their individual assessments.  
 
As you will recall, Step Four/Resolution No. 4 takes place after the bids are received.  Estimated 
assessment amounts are adjusted if necessary to reflect the actual cost as dictated by the bids received.  
A second public hearing is set to allow property owners to comment on their particular assessment.  Each 
property owner is sent a second notice containing the date and time of the public hearing and the amount 
of the proposed assessment for their property. 
 
Step Five/Resolution No. 5 documents the second public hearing, finalizes the special assessment roll 
and sets the terms of payment.  This public hearing is designed to allow affected citizens the opportunity 
to argue whether or not the amount of their assessment is fair and equitable in relation to the benefit they 
receive from the project.  If, after hearing citizen comment, the council decides adjustments need to be 
made to the assessment roll they may do so.  Alternately, if it is felt all the assessments are fair and 
equitable the resolution may be passed as written.  
 
Tonight the council will be considering Resolution No. 4 for the proposed district as a part of the Consent 
Agenda.  Staff recommends authorization of Resolution No. 4 setting a public hearing for Monday, 
February 5, 2024 to receive citizen comment regarding the proposed special assessment roll for the 
following public improvement: 
 
 Special Assessment District No. 2024-01 

Stewart Street, a Public Street, from Shiawassee Street (M-52) to Washington Street 
Street Reconstruction 

 
 
Attachment(s): Stewart Street Resolution No. 4 
  Stewart Street Special Assessment Roll 
  Stewart Street Engineer’s Estimate 
  Stewart Street Special Assessment Map 

 
 



  Reso No. 4 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 4 
SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING 

TO RECEIVE COMMENT REGARDING 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 2024-01 

STEWART STREET, A PUBLIC STREET,  
FROM SHIAWASSEE STREET (M-52) TO WASHINGTON STREET 

      
WHEREAS, the Assessor has prepared a special assessment roll for the purpose of specially assessing 
that portion of the cost of the public improvements more particularly hereinafter described to the 
properties specially benefited by said public improvement, and the same has been presented to the 
Council by the City Clerk.      
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
          
1.   Said special assessment roll is hereby accepted and shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk for 

public examination.  
          
2.   The Council shall meet at the Owosso City Hall, Owosso, Michigan at 7:30 p.m., on Monday, 

February 5, 2024 for the purpose of hearing all persons interested in said special assessment roll and 
reviewing the same.  

          
3.   The City Clerk is directed to publish the notice of said hearings once in the Argus Press, the official 

newspaper of the City of Owosso, not less than ten (10) days prior to said hearing and shall further 
cause notice of said hearing to be sent by first class mail to each owner of the property subject to 
assessment, as indicated by the records in the City Assessor’s office as shown on the general tax 
rolls of the City, at least ten  (10) days before the time of said hearing, said notice to be mailed to the 
addresses shown on said general tax rolls of the City.  

          
4.   The notice of said hearing to be published and mailed shall be in substantially the following form:  
      

NOTICE OF HEARING 
TO REVIEW SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 

CITY OF OWOSSO, COUNTY OF SHIAWASSEE, MICHIGAN 
     
TO THE OWNERS OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY:  
          

Stewart Street, a Public Street, from Shiawassee Street (M-52) to Washington Street 
      

TAKE NOTICE that a Special Assessment roll has been prepared for the purpose of defraying the Special 
Assessment district’s share of the cost of the following described improvements:   
 

Street Reconstruction 
 
The said Special Assessment roll is on file for public examination with the City Clerk and any objections to 
said Special Assessment roll must be filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to the close of the hearing to 
review said Special Assessment roll.    
   
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that appearance and protest at this hearing is required in order to appeal the 
amount of the special assessment to the State Tax Tribunal if an appeal should be desired.  A property 
owner or party in interest, his or her agent, may appear in person at the hearing to protest the special 
assessment or may file his or her appearance by letter and his or her personal appearance shall not be 
required.  The property owner or any person having an interest in the property subject to the proposed 
special assessments may file a written appeal of the special assessment with the State Tax Tribunal 
within thirty days after confirmation of the special assessment roll if that special assessment was 
protested at this hearing.  



  Reso No. 4 

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the City Council will meet at the Owosso City Hall, Owosso, Michigan at 
7:30 p.m. on Monday, February 5, 2024 for the purpose of reviewing said special assessment roll and for 
the purpose of considering all objections to said roll submitted in writing.      



STEWART STREET FROM SHIAWASSEE TO WASHINGTON SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 2024-01 RESO 4

MAJOR STREET

NORTH SIDE
ADDRESS STREET PROPERTY OWNER NAME ROLL NUMBER FRONT CORNER LOT ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT AMOUNT OF 
NO. FOOTAGE DISCOUNT FRONT FEET RATE ASSESSMENT

623 S Shiawassee City of Owosso 050-651-000-029-00 619.4 1 619.40 $85.75 $53,113.55 C-OS-CNSRV
200 Universal Phoenix Owosso Industrial Inv. LLC 050-651-026-001-00 766 1 766.00 $85.75 $65,684.50 I1
720 S Washington 720 S. Washington St., LLC 050-651-031-004-00 124 0.75 93.00 $85.75 $7,974.75 B4

1509.4 1478.40 $126,772.80

SOUTH SIDE
ADDRESS STREET PROPERTY OWNER NAME ROLL NUMBER FRONT CORNER LOT ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT AMOUNT OF 
NO. FOOTAGE DISCOUNT FRONT FEET RATE ASSESSMENT

437 W Stewart Ryan and Crystal Garrison Trust 050-115-001-001-00 33 1 33.00 $85.75 $2,829.75 B4
433 W Stewart James Stechschulte 050-115-001-002-00 52.8 1 52.80 $85.75 $4,527.60 B1
427 W Stewart Dian Parker 050-115-001-003-00 52.8 1 52.80 $76.19 $4,022.83 R1
421 W Stewart James Stechschulte 050-115-001-004-00 52.8 1 52.80 $76.19 $4,022.83 R1
415 W Stewart Roberto and Valentina Larrivey 050-115-001-005-00 52.8 1 52.80 $76.19 $4,022.83 R1
411 W Stewart Riley Temple and William Hudak 050-115-001-006-00 52.8 1 52.80 $76.19 $4,022.83 R1
405 W Stewart Sybil and Christopher Kott 050-601-000-025-00 115.5 0.75 86.63 $76.19 $6,599.96 R1
801 Michigan Patrick Faketty 050-601-000-026-00 82.13 0.75 61.60 $76.19 $4,693.11 R1

W Stewart Dana Barker 050-601-000-081-00 12 1 12.00 $76.19 $914.28 R1
329 W Stewart Edward and Kathleen Rigdon 050-601-000-030-00 44.42 1 44.42 $76.19 $3,384.36 R1
325 W Stewart Frank Hernandez 050-601-000-031-00 64.71 1 64.71 $76.19 $4,930.25 R1
317 W Stewart Cynthia Elston 050-601-000-032-00 54.42 1 54.42 $76.19 $4,146.26 R1
315 W Stewart Cynthia Elston 050-601-000-033-00 50.5 1 50.50 $76.19 $3,847.60 R1
309 W Stewart Francis Pennel 050-601-000-034-00 54.58 1 54.58 $76.19 $4,158.45 R1
231 W Stewart Ruth Anne Reed 050-601-000-035-00 53 1 53.00 $76.19 $4,038.07 R1
227 W Stewart Gerado Arriaga 050-601-000-036-00 54.58 1 54.58 $76.19 $4,158.45 R1
221 W Stewart Amy Bowen 050-601-000-037-00 47.07 1 47.07 $76.19 $3,586.26 R1
217 W Stewart Sergio and Holly Ramos 050-601-000-038-00 47.07 1 47.07 $76.19 $3,586.26 R1
213 W Stewart Suzanne Millikin 050-601-000-039-00 47.07 1 47.07 $76.19 $3,586.26 R1
209 W Stewart Terry and Tiffiny Forrester 050-601-000-040-00 47.07 1 47.07 $76.19 $3,586.26 R1
802 S Ball Elden Buchholz 050-601-000-041-00 94.14 0.75 70.61 $76.19 $5,379.39 R1
121 W Stewart Marianne Spencer 050-651-038-003-00 66 0.75 49.50 $76.19 $3,771.41 R1
115 W Stewart Joshua Spencer 050-651-038-002-00 66 1 66.00 $76.19 $5,028.54 R1
802 S Washington Ainsley Ellison 050-651-038-015-00 132 0.75 99.00 $76.19 $7,542.81 R2

1429.26 1306.82 $100,386.67

2785.22 ASSESSMENTS: 227,159.47$      

ZONING
TYPE

ZONING
TYPE

L ASSESSABLE FRONT FEET



STEWART STREET FROM SHIAWASSEE TO WASHINGTON SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 2024-01 RESO 4
MAJOR STREET

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE ASSESSABLE AMOUNT $648,488.28
TOTAL ASSESSABLE FRONT FEET 2785.22

CALCULATING ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT RATE AND AMOUNTS: RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL
PROPERTY TYPE PROPERTY PROPERTY TOTAL
TOTAL ASSEMENT PER TYPE $648,488.28 $648,488.28
CITY SHARE > 60% $436,295.89 $409,646.16
PROPERTY SHARE @ <40% $212,192.39 $238,842.12
ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT RATE: PROP SHARE/2785.22 $76.19 $85.75
TOTAL FRONT FEET PER TYPE 1221.02 1564.20
TOTAL AMOUNT OF ASSESSMENT PER TYPE: $93,029.32 $134,130.15 $227,159.47

SUMMARY: SPECIAL ASSESSMENT AMOUNTS PER SIDE OF STREET:
NORTH SIDE 126,772.80$                   
SOUTH SIDE 100,386.67$                   
TOTAL SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 227,159.47$                   



8-Jan-24 RESO 4

STEWART STREET FROM SHIAWASSEE TO WASHINGTON ENGINEER'S POST-BID ESTIMATE

DESCRIPTION  QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
 ELLIGIBLE 
AMOUNT 

 CITY COST
60 PERCENT 

 ASSESSMENT 
AT 40% 

RESIDENTIAL 

 ASSESSMENT 
AT 40% 

COMMERCIAL 
Mobilization, Max __, (Road and Storm) 0.7 LSUM 178,100.00$       $      124,670.00 124,670.00$    74,802.00$       49,868.00$          49,868.00$          

Dr Structure, Rem 20 Ea 1,500.00$           $        30,000.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sewer, Rem, Less than 24 inch 863 Ft 25.00$                $        21,575.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Curb and Gutter, Rem 3122 Ft 7.00$                  $        21,854.00 21,854.00$      13,112.40$       8,741.60$            8,741.60$            

Pavt, Rem 515 Syd 9.00$                  $          4,635.00 4,635.00$        2,781.00$         1,854.00$            1,854.00$            

Sidewalk, Rem 528 Syd 8.00$                  $          4,224.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Embankment, CIP 92 Cyd 15.00$                $          1,380.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Excavation, Earth 2436 Cyd 21.00$                $        51,156.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     
Non Haz Contaminated Material Handling and Disposal, LM 25 Cyd 100.00$              $          2,500.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Subgrade Undercutting, Type II 300 Cyd 30.00$                $          9,000.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Flowable Fill, Non-Structural 28 Cyd 350.00$              $          9,800.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop 16 Ea 125.00$              $          2,000.00 2,000.00$        1,200.00$         800.00$               800.00$               

Subbase, CIP 115 Cyd 22.00$                $          2,530.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Aggregate Base, 8 inch, Modified 1047 Syd 16.42$                $        17,191.74 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Aggregate Base, 10 inch, Modified 5952 Syd 21.40$                $      127,372.80 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Maintenance Gravel 300 Ton 25.00$                $          7,500.00 7,500.00$        4,500.00$         3,000.00$            3,000.00$            

Approach, CI II, LM 17 Cyd 71.00$                $          1,207.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Geotextile, Separator, Modified 6997 Syd 3.00$                  $        20,991.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sewer Tap, 4 inch 1 Ea 500.00$              $             500.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sewer Tap, 6 inch 1 Ea 550.00$              $             550.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sewer, SDR-26, 4 inch, Tr Det B, Modified 20 Ft 95.00$                $          1,900.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sewer, SDR-26, 6 inch, Tr Det B, Modified 20 Ft 97.00$                $          1,940.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sewer, SDR-26, 8 inch, Tr Det B, Modified 10 Ft 103.00$              $          1,030.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sewer, SDR-26, 10 inch, Tr Det B, Modified 251 Ft 103.53$              $        25,986.03 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sewer, SDR-26, 12 inch, Tr Det B, Modified 219 Ft 113.00$              $        24,747.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sewer, SDR-26, 15 inch, Tr Det B, Modified 22 Ft 129.50$              $          2,849.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sewer, SDR-26, 18 inch, Tr Det B, Modified 21 Ft 146.00$              $          3,066.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sewer, SDR-26, 24 inch, Tr Det B, Modified 839 Ft 209.00$              $      175,351.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sewer, SDR-26, 30 inch, Tr Det B, Modified 325 Ft 283.00$              $        91,975.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sanitary Service, Conflict 5 Ea 2,500.00$           $        12,500.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Abandoned Gas Main, Conflict 5 Ea 200.00$              $          1,000.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 7 Ea 700.00$              $          4,900.00 4,900.00$        2,940.00$         1,960.00$            1,960.00$            

Dr Structure, Adj, Add Depth 10 Ft 400.00$              $          4,000.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Dr Structure, Tap, 10 inch 2 Ea 550.00$              $          1,100.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Dr Structure, Tap, 12 inch 3 Ea 600.00$              $          1,800.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Dr Structure, Tap, 30 inch 1 Ea 1,000.00$           $          1,000.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Dr Structure, Temp Lowering 4 Ea 500.00$              $          2,000.00 2,000.00$        1,200.00$         800.00$               800.00$               

Dr Structure Cover, EJ 7000 16 Ea 950.00$              $        15,200.00 15,200.00$      9,120.00$         6,080.00$            6,080.00$            

Dr Structure Cover, EJ 1040 w/ Solid Gasket Sealed Cover 4 Ea 900.00$              $          3,600.00 3,600.00$        2,160.00$         1,440.00$            1,440.00$            

Dr Structure Cover, EJ 1040 w/ Vented Cover 9 Ea 855.00$              $          7,695.00 7,695.00$        4,617.00$         3,078.00$            3,078.00$            

Page 1



8-Jan-24 RESO 4

STEWART STREET FROM SHIAWASSEE TO WASHINGTON ENGINEER'S POST-BID ESTIMATE

DESCRIPTION  QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
 ELLIGIBLE 
AMOUNT 

 CITY COST
60 PERCENT 

 ASSESSMENT 
AT 40% 

RESIDENTIAL 

 ASSESSMENT 
AT 40% 

COMMERCIAL 
Dr Structure, 36 inch dia, Modified 13 Ea 2,200.00$           $        28,600.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Dr Structure, 48 inch dia, Modified 11 Ea 3,500.00$           $        38,500.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Dr Structure, 60 inch dia, Modified 1 Ea 6,000.00$           $          6,000.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Dr Structure Collar, Modified 14 Ea 750.00$              $        10,500.00 10,500.00$      6,300.00$         4,200.00$            4,200.00$            

HMA Surface, Rem 5966 Syd 3.00$                  $        17,898.00 17,898.00$      10,738.80$       7,159.20$            7,159.20$            

Hand Patching 8 Ton 220.00$              $          1,760.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

HMA Approach 95 Ton 100.00$              $          9,500.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

HMA, 3EML @ 3.5" 1219 Ton 81.00$                $        98,739.00 98,739.00$      59,243.40$       5,642.23$            28,211.14$          

HMA, 4EML @ 2" 697 Ton 91.00$                $        63,427.00 63,427.00$      38,056.20$       25,370.80$          25,370.80$          

HMA, 5EML @ 1.5" 522 Ton 99.00$                $        51,678.00 51,678.00$      31,006.80$       20,671.20$          20,671.20$          

Cement 2 Ton 200.00$              $             400.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 6 inch 332 Syd 44.00$                $        14,608.00 14,608.00$      8,764.80$         5,843.20$            -$                     

Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 7 inch 89 Syd 48.00$                $          4,272.00 4,272.00$        2,563.20$         -$                     1,708.80$            

Driveway, Nonreinf Conc, 9 inch 178 Syd 53.00$                $          9,434.00 9,434.00$        5,660.40$         -$                     3,773.60$            

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det F4 3138 Ft 20.75$                $        65,113.50 65,113.50$      39,068.10$       26,045.40$          26,045.40$          

Detectable Warning Surface, Modified 45 Ft 125.00$              $          5,625.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Curb Ramp Opening, Conc 57 Ft 23.00$                $          1,311.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Curb Ramp, Conc, 4 inch 419 Sft 5.25$                  $          2,199.75 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Curb Ramp, Conc, 7 inch 389 Sft 6.25$                  $          2,431.25 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 1675 Sft 4.25$                  $          7,118.75 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sidewalk, Conc, 6 inch 1199 Sft 5.25$                  $          6,294.75 -$                  -$                     -$                     
Barricade, Type III, High Intensity, Double Sided, Lighted, Furn 8 Ea 50.00$                $             400.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     
Barricade, Type III, High Intensity, Double Sided, Lighted, Oper 8 Ea 5.00$                  $               40.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     
Lighted Arrow, Type C, Furn 2 Ea 100.00$              $             200.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     
Lighted Arrow, Type C, Oper 2 Ea 100.00$              $             200.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     
Minor Traf Devices 0.7 LSUM 15,262.00$         $        10,683.40 10,683.40$      6,410.04$         4,273.36$            4,273.36$            
Traf Regulator Control 1 LSUM 7,000.00$           $          7,000.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     
Plastic Drum, Fluorescent, Furn 100 Ea 14.00$                $          1,400.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     
Plastic Drum, Fluorescent, Oper 100 Ea 1.00$                  $             100.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     
Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn 584 Sft 1.00$                  $             584.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     
Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper 584 Sft 1.00$                  $             584.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     
Pedestrian Type II Barricade, Temp 10 Ea 55.00$                $             550.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     
Turf Establishment, Performance 1152 Syd 7.50$                  $          8,640.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Gate Box, Adj, Case 1 1 Ea 400.00$              $             400.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Post, Steel, 3 lb 252 Ft 8.00$                  $          2,016.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sign, Type III. Erect, Salv 7 Ea 45.00$                $             315.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sign, Type III, Rem 13 Ea 45.00$                $             585.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Sign, Type IIIB 40 Sft 18.00$                $             720.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, 6 inch, Crosswalk 198 Ft 3.85$                  $             762.30 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, 24 inch, Stop Bar 35 Ft 15.95$                $             558.25 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Page 2



8-Jan-24 RESO 4

STEWART STREET FROM SHIAWASSEE TO WASHINGTON ENGINEER'S POST-BID ESTIMATE

DESCRIPTION  QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
 ELLIGIBLE 
AMOUNT 

 CITY COST
60 PERCENT 

 ASSESSMENT 
AT 40% 

RESIDENTIAL 

 ASSESSMENT 
AT 40% 

COMMERCIAL 
Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, Bike, Small Sym 6 Ea 150.00$              $             900.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, Lt Turn Arrow Sym 1 Ea 275.00$              $             275.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, Sharrow Sym 2 Ea 350.00$              $             700.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, 4 inch, White 2237 Ft 1.55$                  $          3,467.35 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, 12 inch, Cross Hatching, Yellow 300 Ft 7.50$                  $          2,250.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, 4 inch, Yellow 2880 Ft 1.55$                  $          4,464.00 -$                  -$                     -$                     

SUB TOTALS 1,337,479.87$   540,406.90$    324,244.14$     176,826.99$        199,035.10$        

ENGINEERING AT 15% ASSESSABLE COST 200,621.98$      81,061.04$      48,636.62$       26,524.05$          29,855.27$          

ADMINISTRATIVE AT 5% ASSESSABLE COST 66,873.99$        27,020.35$      16,212.21$       8,841.35$            9,951.76$            

GRAND TOTALS 1,604,975.84$   648,488.28$    389,092.97$     212,192.39$        238,842.12$        

Page 3



81
5

81
1

80
7

80
1 329 325 317 315 309 231 227 221

82
6

82
4

81
8

81
2

80
8

405
217 213 209

80
2

81
0

81
6

82
2

82
6

81
7-

8
19

82
1

82
7

82
3

81
7

200 UNIVERSAL DR

61
6

61
8-

6
20

81
8

81
9

81
4

81
5

81
1

81
0

121 115

80
2

80
1

71
5

72
0

71
4

70
8

70
2

82
3

82
5

82
7

70
3

61
9

437 433 427 421 415 411

81
5

81
7

82
1

90
1

90
5

62
0

62
4

72
0

80
2

80
8

81
4

82
0

90
2

62
3-

6
25

City of Owosso

±0 150 300 450 60075

Feet

Proposed Special Assessment No. 2024-01

1501 Street Address Number

Special Assessment Parcels

Other City of Owosso Parcels

W. Stewart St. between S. Shiawassee St & S. Washington St.

S. 
SH

IA
WA

SS
EE

 ST
.

S. 
WA

SH
IN

GT
ON

 ST
.

W. STEWART ST.

23 August, 2023

MI
CH

IG
AN

 AV
E.

S. 
BA

LL
 ST

.



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867‐2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 

 
 

    
 
DATE: January 16, 2024 
 
TO: Mayor Teich and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: WWTP Improvements Phase 1 Project Change Order #1 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval of increased payment for construction work by RCL Construction Co., Inc. (Sanford, MI) 
for the WWTP Improvements Phase 1 project in the amount of $73,672.00.  
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
In the 1930s, a 2 million gallons per day (MGD) primary wastewater facility was constructed to 
serve the City of Owosso. Chlorination was added in the 1960s. The WWTP was upgraded to a 
6 MGD independent physical-chemical treatment facility in the early 1980s to serve the Mid-
Shiawassee County area including the City of Owosso, City of Corunna, and the sewer portions 
of Owosso Township and Caledonia Township. The plant was renamed the Owosso Mid-
Shiawassee County Wastewater Treatment Plant. The treatment process did not perform to the 
permit requirements and was costly and problematic to operate. A major process modification 
was constructed in 1986 to incorporate biological treatment with the properly functioning elements 
of the physical-chemical treatment plant. In 1987, revisions were made to the filter backwash 
system. Year-round disinfection requirements went into effect in 1991. Sodium hypochlorite 
storage and feed equipment was installed to replace gaseous chlorine for disinfection. The 
granular activated carbon modules were repurposed for dechlorination with sodium bisulfite 
polishing. In 1998, minor odor control measures were installed, including: forced draft ventilation 
on the first stage (“roughing”) trickling filter. The previous comminutors/bar screens were replaced 
with combination grinding/screening units to improve pretreatment. In 1999, a centrifuge system 
was installed to replace the previous plate and frame filter press for sludge dewatering. Polymer 
sludge conditioning also replaced ferric chloride and lime. In 2012, a main electrical busway and 
main electrical breakers were replaced and the switchgear between the electrical feeds was 
modified. Use of granular activated carbon for dechlorination was eliminated and the sodium 
bisulfite system upgraded as the primary means for dechlorination. Since 2016, the plant has 
seen additional improvements including the additions of 1/4-inch mechanical bar screens and 
compactors, and replacement of mechanical parts in primary clarifiers and sludge thickener. In 
2020, headworks improvements included replacement of screw pumps and installation of a grit 
vortex chamber. 
 
Key components of the secondary and tertiary treatment have reached or are beyond the end of 

 
 



their useful lives, including the tricking filters, pressure filters, intermediate clarifiers, and 
disinfection. The proposed project is intended to address many of the critical issues of aging 
infrastructure at the WWTP, restore the plant to its design capacity, and increase the longevity of 
the WWTP. The project area includes the Owosso WWTP property area. 
 
Phase 1 improvements consist of: 

 Replacement of filtration 
 Installation of ultraviolet (UV) disinfection 
 Electrical improvements 
 Building improvements 
 New Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system 

 
City Council received a presentation and held a public hearing on May 16, 2022 which included 
the WWTP Phase 1 Improvements project as part of the five (5) year CWSRF Project Plan. City 
Council previously approved the start to this project at its regular scheduled meeting held on July 
18, 2022, as well as approving the bid award to RCL Construction Co., Inc. at the June 20, 2023 
meeting. 
 
Additional work has been identified during the demolition/construction phases which includes: 

 Effluent Pipe – $25,687.00 
o Adjust layout of 36” final effluent pipe to match process plans. Add 90 degree bend 

to avoid pipe conflicts. 
o Imported fitting (not domestic) 

 Process Effluent Water Pipe – $32,123.00 
o Reroute PEW pipe to avoid going under loading dock. Reduce pipe and valve size 

to 4” inside building and add a penetration. 
o Add 4” PEW pipe with two 4”x4” tees. Install 2” yard hydrant off northern tee. 

Connect to existing and cap future extension on southern tee. 
o Remove existing section of PEW pipe and abandon northern section. Remove 

existing yard hydrant and associated piping. 
o 4" PVC quoted, not ductile 

 C909 - PVC 
 Sludge Pipe – $15,862.00 

o Extend removal limits of 6” sludge pipes at northeast corner of Intermediate 
Clarifier No. 1. 

o Add 2 valves on secondary clarifier sludge pipe and add connection for future 
secondary clarifier with cap. Modify sludge pipe connection with 6”x6” tee and 45-
degree bend. 

o Remove 1 valve for future clarifier. 
  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The project is funded by the CWSRF, with the additional costs of $73,672.00.  
Final expenses in the amount of $18,626,796.00 shall be paid from wastewater operating fund 
and 2023 SRF Bond funds 
 
 
Document originated by:  Ryan E. Suchanek, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
ATTACHMENTS: (1) Resolution 
 (2) Change Order  



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 
TO THE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND 

RCL CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. OF SANFORD, MICHIGAN 
FOR CONSTRUCTION AND INSTALLATION OF 

PHASE 1 IMPROVEMENTS PROCESS EQUIPMENT FOR USE 
AT THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a contract with RCL 
Construction Co., Inc., on June 20, 2023 for the construction and installation of the Phase 1 
Improvements process equipment and systems, known as the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(WWTP) Improvements Project - Phase 1, an approved 2023 SRF planned project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project is now underway, and a change order is necessary to reconcile contract 
work and supplies to be used. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary 
and in the public interest to amend the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) 
Improvements Project - Phase 1 contract with RCL Construction Co., Inc. to 
increase the contract amount to update contract work and supplies to be used. 

 
SECOND: The Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 

substantially in form attached as Change Order No. 1 in the amount of 
$73,672.00; an increase to the Contract for Services between the City of Owosso 
and RCL Construction Co., Inc., revising the total current contract amount from 
$18,553,124.00 to $18,626,796.00. 

 
THIRD: The Accounts Payable department is authorized to pay RCL Construction Co., 

Inc. for work satisfactorily completed up to the revised contract amount of 
$18,626,796.00. 

 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the Wastewater Fund, and SRF Bond 

Funds. 



City of Owosso
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Phase 1
Project Number 221308

CHANGE ORDER
PAGE 1 OF 2

Z:\2022\221308\WORK\CONTRACTS\ECD\CO01\CO01 .DOCX

Change Order No. 1 

Date: January 10, 2024 

CONTRACT FOR: Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Phase 1

OWNER: City of Owosso
1410 Chippewa Trail
Owosso, Michigan 48867 
  

CONTRACTOR: RCL Construction Company, Inc.
77 West Maynard Road
Sanford, Michigan 48657
  

ENGINEER: Fishbeck
5913 Executive Drive, Suite 100
Lansing, MI 48911

ATTACHMENTS: Bulletin 01, Bulletin 02

Contractor shall indicate approval of Change Order through signing of this document and returning to Engineer. 
Engineer will forward to Owner, who shall indicate approval of Change Order through signing of this document and 
returning to Engineer. Upon receipt of fully executed (all signatures) Change Order, Engineer will distribute to all 
parties.

YOU ARE DIRECTED TO MAKE THE FOLLOWING CHANGES IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 

ITEM NO. 1:
< >

Item 8 from Bulletin 1, revised plant effluent pipe

ADD: $25,687.00 and 0 Days

Items 1 and 2 from Bulletin 2, Replace process water pipe with C909. Revised sludge pipe layout.

ADD: $32,123.00 and $15,862.00; Total = $47,985.00 and 0 Days

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE: CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES:

Original Contract Price: Original Contract time: September 22, 2023

Substantial Completion: November 3, 2025

$18,553,124 Ready for final payment: January 9, 2026

Previous Change Order No.:   Net change from previous Change Orders:

$0    0 Days  

Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Time prior to this Change Order:

Substantial Completion: November 3, 2025

$18,553,124 Ready for final payment: January 9, 2026

Net increase of this Change Order: Net increase/decrease of this Change Order:

$73,672 0 Days

Contract Price with all approved Change Orders: Contract Time with all approved Change Orders:

Substantial Completion: November 3, 2025

$18,626,796 Ready for final payment: January 9, 2026



City of Owosso
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Phase 1
Project Number 221308

CHANGE ORDER
PAGE 2 OF 2

Z:\2022\221308\WORK\CONTRACTS\ECD\CO01\CO01 .DOCX

Change Order No. 1 

Date: January 10, 2024 

RECOMMENDED APPROVED APPROVED
CITY OF OWOSSO

By: By: By:
Fishbeck Engineer Contractor Robert J. Teich, Jr., Mayor

Brian Van Zee, 
Sr. Water and Wastewater Engineer

Nick Coon, Project Manager
RCL Construction Inc. .

Name and Title of Signatory Name and Title of Signatory Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk

Date: January 10, 2024 Date: Date:

END OF CHANGE ORDER

January 10, 2024











































































 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867‐2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 

 
   

DATE: January 16, 2024 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Clayton Wehner, Director of Engineering 
 
SUBJECT: Cost Agreement between MDOT and city of Owosso for improvements along 

Stewart Street from Shiawassee Street (M-52) easterly to Washington Street 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval of MDOT Cost Agreement No. 23-5504 for the proposed road improvements along 
Stewart Street from Shiawassee Street (M-52) easterly to Washington Street.   
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On November 15, 2021, City Council approved city staff recommendation to make application to 
MDOT for Federal Small Urban Program Funds for the proposed reconstruction of Stewart 
Street from Shiawassee Street (M-52) to Washington Street.  The state of Michigan offers these 
funds for improvements along eligible roads of the National Functional Classification Road 
System, such as Stewart Street. Proposed work includes asphalt paving, curb and gutter 
replacement, intersection improvements, storm sewer replacement, concrete sidewalk and ramp 
upgrades, permanent signing, and pavement marking work; and all together with necessary 
related work and water main replacement (also referred to as ‘project’). The City is responsible 
to design and oversee the project in accordance with MDOT standards. The state agrees to 
reimburse the city for its share of federal funds when available, in accordance with the 
agreement.  
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The total estimated cost for this project is $1,958,900.00 and of that amount, Federal Small 
Urban Program Funds will pay $385,000.00. The City’s estimated share is $1,573,900.00.  The 
City will also be responsible for any cost overruns exceeding the estimated cost for the project. 
Funds for the City’s share of cost will be taken from the Major Street Fund ($976,500.00) and 
the Water Fund ($597,400.00), and other funds as appropriate. 
 
Attachments: (1) Resolution 

(2) MDOT Cost Agreement 

 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF MDOT COST AGREEMENT 
FOR IMPROVEMENTS OF STEWART STREET 

FROM SHIAWASSEE ST (M-52) EASTERLY TO WASHINGTON STREET 
 
WHEREAS, Stewart Street, from Shiawassee Street (M-52) to Washington Street, is a part of 
the National Functional Classification Road system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is required to provide a safe and expedient road system for users which 
requires proper maintenance of the roadway; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has applied for, and is now approved to receive, Federal Small Urban 
Program Funds to assist in road improvements of this road; and 
 
WHEREAS, after review, city staff recommends approval of MDOT Cost Agreement No. 23-
5504 for the proposed hot mix asphalt paving work along Stewart Street from Shiawassee 
Street (M-52) easterly to Washington Street; including intersection improvements, storm sewer 
replacement, concrete curb and gutter replacement, concrete sidewalk and ramp improvements, 
permanent signing, and pavement marking work; and all together with necessary related work 
and water main replacement (also referred to as ‘project’); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Transportation requires the city of Owosso adopt a 
resolution indicating its willingness to participate in the road improvements of Stewart Street as 
set forth in the agreement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary 
and in the public interest to approve MDOT Contract No. 23-5504 for the 
proposed road improvements of Stewart Street, from Shiawassee Street (M-52) 
easterly to Washington Street. 

 
SECOND: That the City of Owosso is willing to participate in the project and cost as 

illustrated within said contract. 
 
THIRD: That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to sign the Agreement as 

attached. 
 
FOURTH: The City Council hereby directs staff to allocate $1,573,900.00 from the Major 

Street Fund ($976,500.00) and the Water Fund ($597,400.00), and other funds 
as appropriate, and to receive another $385,000.00 from Federal Small Urban 
Grant Program Funds for a total of $1,958,900.00 to fund this project and directs 
the City Manager to proceed with the project, in accordance with the MDOT 
Contract Agreement. 

 
  
 
 



09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/1/23 1 

STP  DA 
Control Section STUL 76000 
Job Number  214375CON 
Project  24A0070 
CFDA No.  20.205 (Highway Research 

Planning & Construction) 
Contract No.  23-5504 

PART I 

THIS CONTRACT, consisting of PART I and PART II (Standard Agreement 
Provisions), is made by and between the MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT"; and the CITY OF 
OWOSSO, a Michigan municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "REQUESTING 
PARTY"; for the purpose of fixing the rights and obligations of the parties in agreeing to the 
following improvements, in Owosso, Michigan, hereinafter referred to as the "PROJECT" and 
estimated in detail on EXHIBIT "I", dated December 1, 2023, attached hereto and made a part 
hereof: 

PART A – FEDERAL PARTICIPATION 
Hot mix asphalt pavement reconstruction along West Stewart Street from Shiawassee 
Street (M-52) to Washington Street, including earthwork, subbase and aggregate base, 
storm sewer, drainage structures, concrete driveway, curb and gutter, curb ramps and  
sidewalk, permanent signing and pavement markings; and all together with necessary 
related work. 

PART B – NO FEDERAL PARTICIPATION 
Audio visual filming, watermain and service replacement, associated pavement and 
sidewalk work along the limits as described in PART A; and all together with necessary 
related work.  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Federal law, monies have been provided for the performance of 
certain improvements on public roads; and 

WHEREAS, the reference "FHWA" in PART I and PART II refers to the United States 
Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration; and 

WHEREAS, the PROJECT, or portions of the PROJECT, at the request of the 
REQUESTING PARTY, are being programmed with the FHWA, for implementation with the 
use of Federal Funds under the following Federal program(s) or funding: 



09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/1/23 2 

SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have reached an understanding with each other regarding 
the performance of the PROJECT work and desire to set forth this understanding in the form of a 
written contract.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual undertakings of 
the parties and in conformity with applicable law, it is agreed: 

1. The parties hereto shall undertake and complete the PROJECT in accordance with 
the terms of this contract. 

2. The term "PROJECT COST", as herein used, is hereby defined as the cost of the 
physical construction necessary for the completion of the PROJECT, including any other costs 
incurred by the DEPARTMENT as a result of this contract, except construction engineering and 
inspection. 

No charges will be made by the DEPARTMENT to the PROJECT for any inspection 
work or construction engineering. 

The costs incurred by the REQUESTING PARTY for preliminary engineering, 
construction engineering, construction materials testing, inspection, and right-of-way are 
excluded from the PROJECT COST as defined by this contract.   

The Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy has informed the 
DEPARTMENT that it adopted new administrative rules (R 325.10101, et. seq.) which prohibit 
any governmental agency from connecting and/or reconnecting lead and/or galvanized service 
lines to existing and/or new water main.  Questions regarding these administrative rules should 
be directed to Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy.  The cost 
associated with replacement of any lead and/or galvanized service lines, including but not limited 
to contractor claims, will be the sole responsibility of the REQUESTING PARTY.  

3. The DEPARTMENT is authorized by the REQUESTING PARTY to administer 
on behalf of the REQUESTING PARTY all phases of the PROJECT, including advertising and 
awarding the construction contract for the PROJECT or portions of the PROJECT.  Such 
administration shall be in accordance with PART II, Section II of this contract. 

Any items of the PROJECT COST incurred by the DEPARTMENT may be charged to 
the PROJECT. 

4. The REQUESTING PARTY, at no cost to the PROJECT or to the 
DEPARTMENT, shall:  

A. Design or cause to be designed the plans for the PROJECT. 



09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/1/23 3 

B. Appoint a project engineer who shall be in responsible charge of the 
PROJECT and ensure that the plans and specifications are followed. 

C. Perform or cause to be performed the construction engineering, 
construction materials testing, and inspection services necessary for the 
completion of the PROJECT. 

The REQUESTING PARTY will furnish the DEPARTMENT proposed timing 
sequences for trunkline signals that, if any, are being made part of the improvement.  No timing 
adjustments shall be made by the REQUESTING PARTY at any trunkline intersection, without 
prior issuances by the DEPARTMENT of Standard Traffic Signal Timing Permits. 

5. The PROJECT COST shall be met in accordance with the following: 

PART A 
Federal Surface Transportation Funds shall be applied to the eligible items of the 
PART A portion of the PROJECT COST up to the lesser of: (1) $385,000, or (2) 
an amount such that 81.85 percent, the normal Federal participation ratio for such 
funds, for the PART A portion of the PROJECT is not exceeded at the time of the 
award of the construction contract.  The balance of the PART A portion of the 
PROJECT COST, after deduction of Federal Funds, shall be charged to and paid 
by the REQUESTING PARTY in the manner and at the times hereinafter set 
forth. 

PART B 
The PART B portion of the PROJECT COST is not eligible for Federal 
participation and shall be charged to and paid 100 percent by the REQUESTING 
PARTY in the manner and at the times hereinafter set forth. 

Any items of PROJECT COST not reimbursed by Federal Funds will be the sole 
responsibility of the REQUESTING PARTY.   

6. No working capital deposit will be required for this PROJECT. 

In order to fulfill the obligations assumed by the REQUESTING PARTY under the 
provisions of this contract, the REQUESTING PARTY shall make prompt payments of its share 
of the PROJECT COST upon receipt of progress billings from the DEPARTMENT as herein 
provided.  All payments will be made within 30 days of receipt of billings from the 
DEPARTMENT.  Billings to the REQUESTING PARTY will be based upon the REQUESTING 
PARTY'S share of the actual costs incurred less Federal Funds earned as the PROJECT 
progresses. 

7. At such time as traffic volumes and safety requirements warrant, the 
REQUESTING PARTY will cause to be enacted and enforced such ordinances as may be 
necessary to prohibit parking in the traveled roadway throughout the limits of the PROJECT. 



09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/1/23 4 

8. The performance of the entire PROJECT under this contract, whether Federally 
funded or not, will be subject to the provisions and requirements of PART II that are applicable 
to a Federally funded project. 

In the event of any discrepancies between PART I and PART II of this contract, the 
provisions of PART I shall prevail.   

Buy America Requirements (23 CFR 635.410) shall apply to the PROJECT and will be 
adhered to, as applicable, by the parties hereto. 

9. The REQUESTING PARTY certifies that it is not aware if and has no reason to 
believe that the property on which the work is to be performed under this agreement is a facility, 
as defined by the Michigan Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act [(NREPA), PA 
451, 1994, as amended 2012];  MCL 324.20101(1)(s).  The REQUESTING PARTY also 
certifies that it is not a liable party pursuant to either Part 201 or Part 213 of NREPA, MCL 
324.20126 et seq. and MCL 324.21323a et seq.  The REQUESTING PARTY is a local unit of 
government that has acquired or will acquire property for the use of either a transportation 
corridor or public right-of-way and was not responsible for any activities causing a release or 
threat of release of any hazardous materials at or on the property.  The REQUESTING PARTY 
is not a person who is liable for response activity costs, pursuant to MCL 324.20101 (vv) and 
(ww).  

10. If, subsequent to execution of this contract, previously unknown hazardous 
substances are discovered within the PROJECT limits, which require environmental remediation 
pursuant to either state or federal law, the REQUESTING PARTY, in addition to reporting that 
fact to the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy, shall immediately 
notify the DEPARTMENT, both orally and in writing of such discovery.  The DEPARTMENT 
shall consult with the REQUESTING PARTY to determine if it is willing to pay for the cost of 
remediation and, with the FHWA, to determine the eligibility, for reimbursement, of the 
remediation costs.  The REQUESTING PARTY shall be charged for and shall pay all costs 
associated with such remediation, including all delay costs of the contractor for the PROJECT, in 
the event that remediation and delay costs are not deemed eligible by the FHWA.  If the 
REQUESTING PARTY refuses to participate in the cost of remediation, the DEPARTMENT 
shall terminate the PROJECT.  The parties agree that any costs or damages that the 
DEPARTMENT incurs as a result of such termination shall be considered a PROJECT COST. 

11. If federal and/or state funds administered by the DEPARTMENT are used to pay 
the cost of remediating any hazardous substances discovered after the execution of this contract 
and if there is a reasonable likelihood of recovery, the REQUESTING PARTY, in cooperation 
with the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy and the 
DEPARTMENT, shall make a diligent effort to recover such costs from all other possible 
entities.  If recovery is made, the DEPARTMENT shall be reimbursed from such recovery for 
the proportionate share of the amount paid by the FHWA and/or the DEPARTMENT and the 
DEPARTMENT shall credit such sums to the appropriate funding source. 



09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/1/23 5 

12. The DEPARTMENT'S sole reason for entering into this contract is to enable the 
REQUESTING PARTY to obtain and use funds provided by the Federal Highway 
Administration pursuant to Title 23 of the United States Code. 

Any and all approvals of, reviews of, and recommendations regarding contracts, 
agreements, permits, plans, specifications, or documents, of any nature, or any inspections of 
work by the DEPARTMENT or its agents pursuant to the terms of this contract are done to assist 
the REQUESTING PARTY in meeting program guidelines in order to qualify for available 
funds.  Such approvals, reviews, inspections and recommendations by the DEPARTMENT or its 
agents shall not relieve the REQUESTING PARTY and the local agencies, as applicable, of their 
ultimate control and shall not be construed as a warranty of their propriety or that the 
DEPARTMENT or its agents is assuming any liability, control or jurisdiction. 

The providing of recommendations or advice by the DEPARTMENT or its agents does 
not relieve the REQUESTING PARTY and the local agencies, as applicable of their exclusive 
jurisdiction of the highway and responsibility under MCL 691.1402 et seq., as amended. 

When providing approvals, reviews and recommendations under this contract, the 
DEPARTMENT or its agents is performing a governmental function, as that term is defined in 
MCL 691.1401 et seq., as amended, which is incidental to the completion of the PROJECT. 

Upon completion of the PROJECT, the REQUESTING PARTY shall accept the facilities 
constructed as built to specifications within the contract documents. It is understood that the 
REQUESTING PARTY shall own the facilities and shall operate and maintain the facilities in 
accordance with all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, including, but not limited 
to, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 42 USC 12131 et seq., and its 
associated regulations and standards, and DEPARTMENT Road and Bridge Standard Plans and 
the Standard Specifications for Construction. 

13. The DEPARTMENT, by executing this contract, and rendering services pursuant 
to this contract, has not and does not assume jurisdiction of the highway, described as the 
PROJECT for purposes of MCL 691.1402 et seq., as amended.  Exclusive jurisdiction of such 
highway for the purposes of MCL 691.1402 et seq., as amended, rests with the REQUESTING 
PARTY and other local agencies having respective jurisdiction. 

14. The REQUESTING PARTY shall approve all of the plans and specifications to 
be used on the PROJECT and shall be deemed to have approved all changes to the plans and 
specifications when put into effect.  It is agreed that ultimate responsibility and control over the 
PROJECT rests with the REQUESTING PARTY and local agencies, as applicable. 

15. The REQUESTING PARTY agrees that the costs reported to the DEPARTMENT 
for this contract will represent only those items that are properly chargeable in accordance with 
this contract.  The REQUESTING PARTY also certifies that it has read the contract terms and 
has made itself aware of the applicable laws, regulations, and terms of this contract that apply to 
the reporting of costs incurred under the terms of this contract. 



09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/1/23 6 

16. Each party to this contract will remain responsible for any and all claims arising 
out of its own acts and/or omissions during the performance of the contract, as provided by this 
contract or by law.  In addition, this is not intended to increase or decrease either party’s liability 
for or immunity from tort claims.  This contract is also not intended to nor will it be interpreted 
as giving either party a right of indemnification, either by contract or by law, for claims arising 
out of the performance of this contract. 

17. The parties shall promptly provide comprehensive assistance and cooperation in 
defending and resolving any claims brought against the DEPARTMENT by the contractor, 
vendors or suppliers as a result of the DEPARTMENT'S award of the construction contract for 
the PROJECT.  Costs incurred by the DEPARTMENT in defending or resolving such claims 
shall be considered PROJECT COSTS. 

18. The DEPARTMENT shall require the contractor who is awarded the contract for 
the construction of the PROJECT to provide insurance in the amounts specified and in 
accordance with the DEPARTMENT'S current Standard Specifications for Construction and to:  

A. Maintain bodily injury and property damage insurance for the duration of 
the PROJECT. 

B. Provide owner's protective liability insurance naming as insureds the State 
of Michigan, the Michigan State Transportation Commission, the 
DEPARTMENT and its officials, agents and employees, the 
REQUESTING PARTY and any other county, county road commission, 
or municipality in whose jurisdiction the PROJECT is located, and their 
employees, for the duration of the PROJECT and to provide, upon request, 
copies of certificates of insurance to the insureds.  It is understood that the 
DEPARTMENT does not assume jurisdiction of the highway described as 
the PROJECT as a result of being named as an insured on the owner’s 
protective liability insurance policy. 

C. Comply with the requirements of notice of cancellation and reduction of 
insurance set forth in the current standard specifications for construction 
and to provide, upon request, copies of notices and reports prepared to 
those insured. 



09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/1/23 7 

19.         This contract shall become binding on the parties hereto and of full force and 
effect upon the signing thereof by the duly authorized officials for the parties hereto and upon the 
adoption of the necessary resolutions approving said contract and authorizing the signatures 
thereto of the respective officials of the REQUESTING PARTY, a certified copy of which 
resolution shall be attached to this contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be executed as 
written below. 

CITY OF OWOSSO  MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT 
OF TRANSPORTATION 

By___________________________        By___________________________ 
  Title:  for Department Director  MDOT 

By___________________________ 
  Title: 

DoyleL
Reviewed



09/06/90 STPLS.FOR  12/1/23 8 

December 1, 2023 

EXHIBIT I 

CONTROL SECTION STUL 76000 
JOB NUMBER  214375CON 
PROJECT  24A0070 

ESTIMATED COST 

CONTRACTED WORK 

  PART A PART B   TOTAL 
Estimated Cost $1,361,500 $597,400 $1,958,900 

COST PARTICIPATION 

GRAND TOTAL ESTIMATED COST   $1,361,500 $597,400 $1,958,900 
Less Federal Funds*  $   385,000 $           0 $   385,000 
BALANCE (REQUESTING PARTY'S SHARE) $   976,500 $597,400 $1,573,900 

*Federal Funds for the PROJECT are limited to an amount as described in Section 5. 

NO DEPOSIT  











































 

 

Warrant 639 
January 9, 2024 

 

 

 

Date Vendor Description Fund Amount 

1‐9‐2024  Owosso Charter Township 
Quarterly Charge Back per  
2011 Water Agreement 

Water  $17,039.14 

1‐9‐2024 
Caledonia Charter 

Township 
Quarterly Charge Back per 
2006 Water Agreement 

Water  $39,325.03 

    Total    $56,364.17 



Owosso City Council

Building Department

Report Month:

From:

To: 

Category Estimated Cost Permit Fee Number of Permits

DECEMBER 2023

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES $0 $75 1
APARTMENTS - ADD & ALT $4,200 $215 1
BASEMENT WATERPROOFING $8,800 $325 1
Electrical $0 $600 5
FENCE PERMIT $0 $85 1
GARAGE, DETACHED $12,000 $365 1
Mechanical $0 $2,500 14
NEW BUSINESS $0 $75 1
NON-RES. ADD/ALTER/REPAIR $25,500 $753 1
Plumbing $0 $930 3
RES. ADD/ALTER/REPAIR $10,000 $90 1
ROOF $71,006 $935 7
ROW-UTILITY $0 $50 1
SIGN PERMIT $0 $62 2
WINDOWS $18,069 $170 2

Totals $7,230 42$149,575

2022 COMPARISON TOTALS

$346,044 $13,655 65DECEMBER 2022



d

"T

"T

"T
"¥

"T
#

#

#Þ?

l
"T"T

N
 W

a
te

r 
S

t

N
 B

a
ll 

S
t

E Oliver St

N
 P

a
rk

 S
t

N
 G

o
u

ld
 S

t

N
 D

e
w

e
y 

S
t

M 21

N
 W

a
sh

in
g

to
n

 S
t

E Main St

N
 A

d
a

m
s 

S
t

P
in

e
 S

t

N
 S

a
g

in
a

w
 S

t

N
 S

h
ia

w
a

ss
e

e
 S

t

E Mason St

A
d

a
 S

t

K
ru

st
 D

r

E King St

N
 M

 5
2

Moore St

E Exchange St

N
 H

ic
ko

ry
 S

t

S
u

m
m

it 
S

t

W King St

W Main St

Ja
ck

so
n

 D
r

N
 O

a
k 

S
t

G
ilb

e
rt

 S
t

E Williams St

W North St

R
a

nd
o

lp
h

 S
t

H
u

nt
in

g
to

n
 D

r

N
 H

ic
ko

ry
 R

d

Queen St

D
im

m
ic

k 
S

t

W
ilt

sh
ir

e
 D

r

Abbott St

W Williams St

Clinton St

Stevens Dr

Brandon St

E North St

D
in

g
w

a
ll 

D
r

Stratford Dr

Velma Dr

Lee St

Kiwanis Village Dr

W Wesley Dr

S W
ater St E Comstock St

R
u

be
lm

a
n

 D
r

River St

E
lm

w
o

o
d

 S
t

C
h

er
ry

la
w

n
 S

t

S
h

o
rt

 S
t

M
a

lla
rd

 C
ir

S
 O

a
k 

S
t

S
 G

o
u

ld
 S

t

S
 B

a
ll 

S
t

E Wesley Dr

Avon Dr

H
olly C

t

G
e

lla
tly

 C
t

Pintail Ct

N
 H

ic
ko

ry
 S

t

E North St

E Comstock St

Category
? Apartments - Add & Alt

d Electrical

"T Mechanical

l Non-Res. Add/Alter/Repair

Þ Plumbing

# Roof

"¥ Windows

City of Owosso
Permit Activity
December 2023

NE Quadrant

±0 300 600 900 1,200
Feet

Other Features
City Limit

Railroads

River & Lakes



d

"¥

_̀

"T

"T
£

ø

W Main St

W King St

M 21

C
le

ve
la

n
d

 A
ve

P
in

e
 S

t

N
 C

h
ip

m
a

n
 S

t

N
 S

h
ia

w
a

ss
e

e
 S

t

A
d

a
 S

t

C
e

nt
e

r 
S

t

N
 M

 5
2

W North St

Young St

Bradley St

River St

H
o

yt
 S

t

Mason Rd

Clinton St

N
 C

h
ip

m
a

n
 R

d

1s
t 

S
t

H
a

no
ve

r 
S

t
3r

d
 S

t

5t
h

 S
t

Lee St
7t

h
 S

t

Stinson St

Chipman Ln

Buckley Dr

Chippewa Trl

Hathaway Dr

Olmstead St

Babcock St

C
la

rk
 A

ve

W
a

rd
 S

t

N
 C

h
es

tn
u

t 
S

t

La
fa

ye
tt

e
 B

lv
d

M
e

a
d

o
w

 D
r

Harding St

N
 B

ro
ok

s 
S

t

Beehler St

W
e

st
 S

t

N
 L

a
n

si
n

g
 S

t

Keifer St

N
 E

lm
 S

t

R
iverside D

r

W
ill

o
w

 S
t

Donald St

Marion St

W Oliver St

O
rc

h
a

rd
 S

t

Irene St

Sandra St

C
o

rle
tt

 D
r

Alturas Dr

S
ta

te
 S

t

N
 L

yo
n

 S
t

Willow

Kenneth St

S
p

ri
n

g
s 

D
r

C
ur

w
oo

d 
D

r

S
 E

lm
 S

t

E
lli

o
t 

S
t

Alta Vista Dr

H
iaw

atha D
r

R
o

bb
in

s 
S

t

S
 C

e
d

a
r 

S
t

W
oo

dh
al

l C
t

Bennett Field Dr

A
ld

e
n

 S
t

Cam
pb

el
l D

r

W King St

W
a

rd
 S

t

A
d

a
 S

t

Marion St

W Oliver St

Category
£ Basement Waterproofing

d Electrical

ø Fence Permit

"T Mechanical

_̀ ROW-Utility

"¥ Windows

City of Owosso
Permit Activity
December 2023

NW Quadrant

±0 300 600 900 1,200
Feet

Other Features
City Limit

Railroads

River & Lakes



Þ

²³

#Þ?

l
"T"T

©

#

"T

#

"T

"T

d

Monroe St

Corunna Ave

M 21
E Main St

S
 G

o
u

ld
 S

t

S
 S

h
ia

w
a

ss
e

e
 S

t

P
a

lm
er

 A
ve

Vandekarr R
d

Farr Ave

Gute St

Grover St

G
ra

n
d

 A
ve

Li
n

g
le

 A
ve

Jerome Ave

E Exchange St

A
lg

e
r 

A
ve

S
 W

a
sh

in
g

to
n

 S
t

Cass St

W Main St

W
o

o
dl

a
w

n
 A

ve

M
cM

ill
a

n
 A

ve

S
 P

a
rk

 S
t

E Howard St

B
ro

a
d

w
a

y 
A

ve

D
iv

is
io

n
 S

t
W Stewart St

O
akw

ood A
ve

C
o

ok
 R

d

Li
n

co
ln

 A
ve

Allendale Ave

Prindle St

G
le

n
w

o
o

d
 A

veS
 B

a
ll 

S
t

S
 S

a
g

in
a

w
 S

t

E South St

Clinton St

F
ra

ze
r A

ve

S 
M

 5
2

Genesee St

Industrial Dr

S
 O

a
k 

S
t

W Ridge St

B
u

lla
rd

 D
r

N
 P

a
rk

 S
t

Keyte St

Grace St

S W
ater St

W
ri

g
ht

 A
ve

Melinda St

B
e

ck
 A

ve
M

a
y 

S
t

Cornell Rd

Jo
hn

so
n 

S
t

Hopkins Lake Dr

R
ow

le
y 

S
t

S
 H

ic
ko

ry
 S

t

College Ln

A
b

re
y 

A
ve

B
ye

rl
y 

S
t

B
aker D

r

Huron St

M
ic

h
ig

a
n

 A
ve

R
a

w
le

ig
h

 A
ve

E Comstock St

H
a

rr
is

o
n

 A
ve

N
 B

a
ll 

S
t

N
 O

a
k 

S
t

Ryan St

H
o

lli
d

a
y 

A
ve

Clyde St

S
m

ith
 S

t

S
h

o
rt

 S
t

H
ug

gi
ns

 S
t

Ament St

G
a

rf
ie

ld
 A

ve

M
ap

le
 A

ve

Himburg Dr

E Comstock St

Jo
h

n
so

n
 S

t

Huron St

Jerome Ave

Farr Ave

S
 B

a
ll 

S
t

Grover St

S
 P

a
rk

 S
t

A
b

re
y 

A
ve

Category
? Apartments - Add & Alt

d Electrical

²³ Garage, Detached

"T Mechanical

© New Business

l Non-Res. Add/Alter/Repair

Þ Plumbing

# Roof

City of Owosso
Permit Activity
December 2023

SE Quadrant

±0 300 600 900 1,200
Feet

Other Features
City Limit

Railroads

River & Lakes



²³

d

_̀

"T

"T
£

²³

#

i

#

"T

W South St

W Main St

W Stewart St

S
 C

h
ip

m
an

 S
t

S
 C

e
d

a
r 

S
t

M 21

S
 C

h
e

st
n

ut
 S

t

W
a

ln
u

t S
t

Ryan St

S 
M

 5
2

S
 S

h
ia

w
a

ss
e

e
 S

t

Henry St

Frederick St

Grace St

Lynn St

T
ra

cy
 S

t

Young St

Bradley St

Cass St

Fletcher St

Ament St

N
a

fu
s 

S
t

S
ta

te
 S

t

Clinton St

Bock St

H
e

le
n

a
 S

t

S
 P

e
a

rc
e

 S
t

Hampton St

M
a

rt
in

 S
t

K
e

n
w

o
o

d
 D

r

C
a

rr
 S

t

N
e

ls
o

n 
S

t

S
 L

yo
n

 S
tIs
h

a
m

 S
t

G
e

o
rg

e
 S

t

E
tt

a
 S

t

Hiram St

S
 E

lm
 S

t

R
o

bb
in

s 
S

t

Roslyn Dr

Roby St

A
sh

 S
t

Clyde St

Mack St

Keifer St

Renfrew Dr

H
a

m
m

o
n

t 
S

t

Donald St

Krouse Rd

C
ov

en
tr

y 
C

t

Herman St

H
op

ki
ns

 L
ak

e 
D

r

W
a

b
a

ss
e

e
 D

r

Gute St

H
o

yt
 S

t

Rain St

Mary St

Milwaukee St

W
ilk

in
so

n
 S

t

S
 L

a
n

si
n

g
 S

t

Calvert St

Dowling Dr

E
lli

o
t 

S
t

N
 E

lm
 S

t

M
o

rr
is

 S
t

Prindle St

Gregory St

S
ta

te
 S

t

Clyde St

S
ta

te
 S

t

Lynn St

S
ta

te
 S

t
Herman St

Is
h

a
m

 S
t

G
e

o
rg

e
 S

t

Lynn St

N
a

fu
s 

S
t

Category
²³ Accessory Structures

£ Basement Waterproofing

d Electrical

²³ Garage, Detached

"T Mechanical

i Res. Add/Alter/Repair

# Roof

_̀ ROW-Utility

City of Owosso
Permit Activity
December 2023

SW Quadrant

±0 300 600 900 1,200
Feet

Other Features
City Limit

Railroads

River & Lakes



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

1/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES

12/07/2023ENF 21-1764 CLOSED 11/22/2021 12/07/2023RESOLVED NGENESEE ST

Total Entries 1

ANIMALS

12/11/2023 01/08/2024ENF 23-1339 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/11/2023LETTER SENT NLAFAYETTE BLVD

Total Entries 1

APPLIANCES

01/04/2024 01/04/2024ENF 23-1415 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/28/2023S INSPECTED PROPERTY YCHIPMAN ST

12/20/2023ENF 23-1378 CLOSED 12/14/2023 12/20/2023RESOLVED NCLYDE ST

Total Entries 2

AUTO REP/JUNK VEH

12/18/2023 01/11/2024ENF 23-0706 3RD TICKET ISSUED 07/13/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NCORUNNA AVE

12/28/2023 01/11/2024ENF 23-1364 2ND NOTICE SENT 12/13/2023W LETTER SENT NSTEWART ST

12/04/2023ENF 23-1327 CLOSED 12/04/2023 12/04/2023RESOLVED NHENRY ST

12/11/2023ENF 23-1326 CLOSED 12/04/2023 12/11/2023RESOLVED NHENRY ST

Total Entries 4

BRUSH

12/05/2023ENF 23-1333 CLOSED 12/05/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVED NADA ST

Total Entries 1

BRUSH PILES

01/02/2024 04/30/2024ENF 23-1379 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/14/2023CONTACT WITH OWNER NHAMPTON AVE

Total Entries 1

BUILDING VIOL



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

2/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

12/18/2023 01/18/2024ENF 18-0622 REF TO CITY ATTY 08/10/2018W INSPECTED PROPERTY INDOLIVER ST

Total Entries 1

BUILDING VIOL

12/07/2023 01/09/2024ENF 23-0569 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/12/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NWOODLAWN AVE

12/04/2023 01/16/2024ENF 23-0960 LETTER SENT 09/07/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NALGER AVE

12/18/2023 01/18/2024ENF 23-1382 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/18/2023LETTER SENT NWOODLAWN AVE

12/19/2023 03/19/2024ENF 23-1392 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/19/2023S INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN

12/12/2023 01/17/2024ENF 23-0578 2ND NOTICE SENT 06/12/2023S LETTER SENT COMMCHIPMAN ST

12/01/2023 02/01/2024ENF 20-0748 RECHECK SCHEDULED 09/16/2020COURT ACTION VACMARTIN ST

12/19/2023 01/18/2024ENF 23-0254 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 03/21/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY VACYOUNG ST

12/12/2023 01/18/2024ENF 23-0542 FINAL NOTICE 06/06/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY YGROVER ST

12/18/2023 01/18/2024ENF 23-0631 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/22/2023N INSPECTED PROPERTY NSAGINAW ST

12/19/2023 01/18/2024ENF 22-0677 RECHECK SCHEDULED 05/19/2022N COURT ACTION VACSHIAWASSEE ST

12/18/2023 02/22/2024ENF 23-0882 EXTENSION GRANTED 08/17/2023CONTACT WITH OWNER VACPINE ST

12/05/2023ENF 23-1275 CLOSED 11/21/2023 12/05/2023N RESOLVED COMMWASHINGTON ST

12/08/2023ENF 23-1330 CLOSED 12/05/2023 12/08/2023OBTAINED PERMIT NMONROE ST

12/06/2023 02/06/2024ENF 23-0128 RED-TAGGED 02/06/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY VACDIVISION ST

12/07/2023 01/08/2024ENF 20-0972 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/18/2020E INSPECTED PROPERTY NWILLIAMS ST

12/18/2023 01/18/2024ENF 22-1586 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/29/2022W INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMEXCHANGE ST

12/07/2023 01/11/2024ENF 23-0612 REF TO CITY ATTY 06/20/2023W INSPECTED PROPERTY NEXCHANGE

12/04/2023 01/09/2024ENF 21-0307 LETTER SENT 03/03/2021N INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMWASHINGTON ST



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

3/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

12/18/2023 01/17/2024ENF 22-1352
PENDING PERMIT
APPLICATION

10/03/2022INSPECTED PROPERTY NCORUNNA AVE

12/18/2023ENF 23-1350 CLOSED 12/11/2023 12/18/2023OBTAINED PERMIT NFREEMAN ST

12/07/2023 01/08/2024ENF 23-0785 LETTER SENT 07/26/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NGENESEE ST

12/18/2023 02/15/2024ENF 23-0270 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 03/29/2023E INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTEWART ST

12/07/2023 01/09/2024ENF 22-1131 3RD TICKET ISSUED 08/10/2022E INSPECTED PROPERTY YMASON ST

12/28/2023 01/25/2024ENF 20-0720 REF TO BLDG OFFICIAL 09/10/2020INSPECTED PROPERTY NHURON ST

Total Entries 24

EXTERIOR PAINT/SIDING

12/28/2023 01/25/2024ENF 21-0040 RECHECK SCHEDULED 01/12/2021INSPECTED PROPERTY NWOODLAWN AVE

12/12/2023ENF 21-0041 CLOSED 01/12/2021 12/14/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY VACMILWAUKEE ST

12/19/2023 01/18/2024ENF 20-0143 1ST TICKET ISSUED 03/05/2020INSPECTED PROPERTY NLYNN ST

Total Entries 3

FENCE VIOLATION

12/04/2023ENF 23-1324 CLOSED 12/04/2023 12/04/2023E RESOLVED NEXCHANGE ST

Total Entries 1

FIRE DAMAGE

12/19/2023 01/18/2024ENF 23-0174 RED-TAGGED 02/23/2023N INSPECTED PROPERTY VACHICKORY ST

12/07/2023 01/11/2024ENF 23-0866 OBTAINED BLDG PERMIT 08/15/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY YCORUNNA AVE

12/19/2023 01/17/2024ENF 22-0193 REF TO CITY ATTY 02/21/2022S INSPECTED PROPERTY YCHIPMAN ST

12/07/2023 01/08/2024ENF 23-0940
CONTACT WITH
HOMEOWNER

09/05/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NCASS ST

12/07/2023 01/08/2024ENF 23-0941 RE-INSPECT PENDING 09/05/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NCASS ST



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

4/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

12/14/2023 01/18/2024ENF 23-1003
CONTACT WITH
HOMEOWNER

09/19/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NCASS ST

12/06/2023 01/08/2024ENF 23-0701 RECHECK SCHEDULED 07/12/2023E INSPECTED PROPERTY NEXCHANGE ST

Total Entries 7

FRONT YARD PARKING

12/14/2023ENF 23-1303 CLOSED 11/27/2023 12/14/2023RESOLVED NALGER AVE

12/07/2023ENF 23-1322 CLOSED 11/30/2023 12/07/2023W RESOLVED NSTEWART ST

Total Entries 2

FURNITURE OUTSIDE

12/13/2023ENF 23-1314 CLOSED 11/29/2023 12/13/2023RESOLVED NGLENWOOD AVE

01/04/2024 01/04/2024ENF 23-1412 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/28/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY YDINGWALL DR

12/11/2023ENF 23-1305 CLOSED 11/27/2023 12/11/2023E RESOLVED YEXCHANGE ST

Total Entries 3

GARBAGE & DEBRIS

12/27/2023ENF 23-1028 CLOSED 09/26/2023 12/27/2023RESOLVED NCORUNNA AVE

12/20/2023 01/18/2024ENF 23-1367 LETTER SENT 12/13/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY YWRIGHT AVE

12/27/2023 01/10/2024ENF 23-1318 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/29/2023W INSPECTED PROPERTY NSOUTH ST

12/14/2023ENF 23-1075 CLOSED 10/09/2023 12/14/2023RESOLVED NMOORE ST

12/14/2023ENF 23-1298 CLOSED 11/22/2023 12/14/2023N RESOLVED NDEWEY ST

12/04/2023 02/07/2024ENF 22-1388 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 10/11/2022INSPECTED PROPERTY NYOUNG ST

12/20/2023 01/10/2024ENF 23-1307 2ND NOTICE SENT 11/27/2023E LETTER SENT YMASON ST

12/20/2023ENF 23-1372 CLOSED 12/13/2023 12/20/2023RESOLVED NGRAND AVE

12/06/2023 02/06/2024ENF 23-0596 FINAL NOTICE 06/13/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY VACDIVISION ST



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

5/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

12/26/2023 01/10/2024ENF 23-1355 LETTER SENT 12/12/2023E INSPECTED PROPERTY NWILLIAMS ST

12/05/2023ENF 23-1272 CLOSED 11/20/2023 12/05/2023E RESOLVED NMAIN ST

01/03/2024ENF 23-1408 CLOSED 12/27/2023 01/03/2024N RESOLVED NWATER ST

12/20/2023ENF 23-1376 CLOSED 12/14/2023 12/20/2023N RESOLVED NSHIAWASSEE ST

12/27/2023 01/04/2024ENF 23-1325 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/04/2023W LETTER SENT NSTEWART ST

12/14/2023ENF 23-1284 CLOSED 11/22/2023 12/14/2023S RESOLVED VACCHIPMAN ST

12/14/2023ENF 23-1321 CLOSED 11/30/2023 12/14/2023RESOLVED NFREDERICK ST

12/18/2023ENF 23-1328 CLOSED 12/04/2023 12/18/2023RESOLVED NFREDERICK ST

12/06/2023ENF 23-1317 CLOSED 11/29/2023 12/06/2023N RESOLVED NHICKORY ST

12/06/2023 01/08/2024ENF 22-1318 EXTENSION GRANTED 09/20/2022CONTACT WITH OWNER NGRACE ST

12/20/2023 01/04/2024ENF 23-1375 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 12/14/2023N INSPECTED PROPERTY NLANSING ST

12/27/2023 01/04/2024ENF 23-1362 LETTER SENT 12/13/2023N INSPECTED PROPERTY YLANSING ST

12/20/2023 01/11/2024ENF 23-1106 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 10/16/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NFLETCHER ST

Total Entries 22

GARBAGE CANS

12/27/2023ENF 23-1329 CLOSED 12/04/2023 12/27/2023RESOLVED NGLENWOOD AVE

Total Entries 1

GARBAGE/JUNK IN ROW

12/05/2023ENF 23-1302 CLOSED 11/27/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVED NWOODLAWN AVE

12/12/2023ENF 23-1261 CLOSED 11/20/2023 12/12/2023RESOLVED NALGER AVE

12/28/2023ENF 23-1399 CLOSED 12/20/2023 12/28/2023RESOLVED NGLENWOOD AVE



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

6/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

12/18/2023ENF 23-1343 CLOSED 12/11/2023 12/18/2023RESOLVED NWOODLAWN AVE

12/07/2023ENF 23-1319 CLOSED 11/29/2023 12/07/2023RESOLVED NWOODLAWN AVE

12/28/2023ENF 23-1366 CLOSED 12/13/2023 12/28/2023RESOLVED NGLENWOOD AVE

12/06/2023ENF 23-1311 CLOSED 11/28/2023 12/06/2023RESOLVED YGILBERT ST

12/20/2023ENF 23-1359 CLOSED 12/12/2023 12/20/2023RESOLVED NDIMMICK ST

12/28/2023ENF 23-1393 CLOSED 12/19/2023 12/28/2023RESOLVED NSUMMIT ST

12/26/2023ENF 23-1349 CLOSED 12/11/2023 12/26/2023N CLOSED YHICKORY

12/19/2023ENF 23-1215 CLOSED 11/13/2023 12/19/2023RESOLVED YGROVER ST

01/04/2024 01/04/2024ENF 23-1410 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/27/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NMOORE ST

12/13/2023ENF 23-1227 CLOSED 11/14/2023 12/13/2023RESOLVED NPINE ST

12/19/2023ENF 23-1360 CLOSED 12/12/2023 12/19/2023RESOLVED NPINE ST

12/20/2023ENF 23-1368 CLOSED 12/13/2023 12/20/2023N RESOLVED NWASHINGTON ST

12/04/2023ENF 23-1301 CLOSED 11/27/2023 12/04/2023RESOLVED NKEYTE ST

01/03/2024ENF 23-1404 CLOSED 12/26/2023 01/03/2024E RESOLVED NMASON ST

11/27/2023ENF 23-1304 CLOSED 11/27/2023 12/04/2023E RESOLVED NMASON ST

12/11/2023ENF 23-1226 CLOSED 11/14/2023 12/11/2023N RESOLVED NDEWEY ST

12/14/2023ENF 23-1296 CLOSED 11/22/2023 12/14/2023RESOLVED NGRAND AVE

01/04/2024 01/04/2024ENF 23-1371 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/13/2023LETTER SENT NGRAND AVE

12/14/2023ENF 23-1300 CLOSED 11/27/2023 12/14/2023RESOLVED NGRAND AVE

12/27/2023ENF 23-1395 CLOSED 12/20/2023 12/27/2023RESOLVED YLINGLE AVE

01/02/2024ENF 23-1383 CLOSED 12/18/2023 01/02/2024RESOLVED YHUGGINS ST



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

7/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

12/26/2023ENF 23-1384 CLOSED 12/18/2023 12/26/2023RESOLVED YCORUNNA AVE

01/04/2024 01/04/2024ENF 23-1411 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/28/2023N INSPECTED PROPERTY NHICKORY ST

12/20/2023ENF 23-1338 CLOSED 12/11/2023 12/20/2023N RESOLVED NSAGINAW ST

12/20/2023ENF 23-1370 CLOSED 12/13/2023 12/20/2023N RESOLVED NPARK ST

12/26/2023ENF 23-1310 CLOSED 11/28/2023 12/26/2023N RESOLVED YWATER ST

12/13/2023ENF 23-1331 CLOSED 12/05/2023 12/13/2023N RESOLVED NWATER ST

01/04/2024 01/04/2024ENF 23-1369 LETTER SENT 12/13/2023N INSPECTED PROPERTY YWATER ST

12/13/2023ENF 23-1332 CLOSED 12/05/2023 12/13/2023N RESOLVED NWATER ST

12/07/2023ENF 23-1320 CLOSED 11/30/2023 12/07/2023N RESOLVED NCHIPMAN ST

01/03/2024ENF 23-1403 CLOSED 12/26/2023 01/03/2024E RESOLVED NKING ST

01/03/2024 01/10/2024ENF 23-1407 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/27/2023E INSPECTED PROPERTY NKING ST

12/05/2023ENF 23-1278 CLOSED 11/21/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVED NISHAM ST

12/06/2023ENF 23-1100 CLOSED 10/16/2023 12/06/2023RESOLVED NOAKWOOD AVE

12/18/2023ENF 23-1342 CLOSED 12/11/2023 12/18/2023RESOLVED NISHAM ST

12/27/2023 01/04/2024ENF 23-1363 LETTER SENT 12/13/2023W INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTEWART ST

12/20/2023ENF 23-1373 CLOSED 12/13/2023 12/20/2023RESOLVED NTRACY ST

12/27/2023ENF 23-1386 CLOSED 12/18/2023 12/27/2023S RESOLVED NCHIPMAN ST

12/19/2023ENF 23-1356 CLOSED 12/12/2023 12/19/2023E RESOLVED NKING ST

12/19/2023ENF 23-1361 CLOSED 12/12/2023 12/19/2023S RESOLVED NLYON ST

12/26/2023 01/09/2024ENF 23-1337 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 12/11/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY YMICHIGAN AVE

12/20/2023ENF 23-1377 CLOSED 12/14/2023 12/20/2023RESOLVED NCASS ST



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

8/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

12/20/2023ENF 23-1377 CLOSED 12/14/2023 12/20/2023RESOLVEDCASS ST

12/05/2023ENF 23-1159 CLOSED 10/31/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVED YMICHIGAN AVE

01/03/2024ENF 23-1397 CLOSED 12/20/2023 01/03/2024RESOLVED YMICHIGAN AVE

12/14/2023ENF 23-1313 CLOSED 11/29/2023 12/14/2023E RESOLVED NRIDGE ST

12/26/2023 01/04/2024ENF 23-1385 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/18/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NRIVER ST

12/18/2023ENF 23-1341 CLOSED 12/11/2023 12/18/2023RESOLVED YBEEHLER ST

12/18/2023ENF 23-1345 CLOSED 12/11/2023 12/18/2023E RESOLVED NEXCHANGE ST

12/27/2023 01/04/2024ENF 23-1409 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/27/2023W INSPECTED PROPERTY NKING ST

12/04/2023ENF 23-1268 CLOSED 11/20/2023 12/04/2023RESOLVED NTHIRD ST

01/03/2024ENF 23-1401 CLOSED 12/26/2023 01/03/2024RESOLVED NFLETCHER ST

12/19/2023ENF 23-1353 CLOSED 12/12/2023 12/19/2023RESOLVED YOAKWOOD AVE

12/05/2023ENF 23-1309 CLOSED 11/27/2023 12/05/2023N RESOLVED YCHIPMAN ST

Total Entries 56

HEALTH & SAFETY

12/28/2023 01/29/2024ENF 21-0921
CONTACT WITH
HOMEOWNER

06/23/2021INSPECTED PROPERTY NCORUNNA AVE

Total Entries 1

HOUSE NUMBERS

12/06/2023ENF 23-1294 CLOSED 11/22/2023 12/06/2023RESOLVED INDMCMILLAN AVE

12/06/2023ENF 23-1293 CLOSED 11/22/2023 12/06/2023RESOLVED INDMCMILLAN AVE

12/05/2023ENF 23-1240 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVED YCORUNNA AVE

12/05/2023ENF 23-1241 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVED COMMCORUNNA AVE

12/19/2023 01/10/2024ENF 23-1242 LETTER SENT 11/16/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NCORUNNA AVE



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

9/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

12/19/2023 01/10/2024ENF 23-1244 LETTER SENT 11/16/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMCORUNNA AVE

12/05/2023ENF 23-1243 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVED COMMCORUNNA AVE

12/05/2023ENF 23-1245 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVED COMMCORUNNA AVE

12/18/2023 01/10/2024ENF 23-1239 LETTER SENT 11/16/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NCORUNNA AVE

12/19/2023 01/10/2024ENF 23-1292 LETTER SENT 11/22/2023W INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMMAIN ST

12/26/2023 01/11/2024ENF 23-1221 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/13/2023LETTER SENT NCORUNNA AVE

12/07/2023ENF 23-1255 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/07/2023RESOLVED NCENTER ST

12/07/2023ENF 23-1256 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/07/2023RESOLVED NCENTER ST

12/04/2023ENF 23-1253 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/04/2023RESOLVED NCENTER ST

12/07/2023ENF 23-1257 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/07/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NCENTER ST

12/07/2023ENF 23-1258 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/07/2023RESOLVED NCENTER ST

12/04/2023ENF 23-1254 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/04/2023RESOLVED NCENTER ST

12/05/2023ENF 23-1236 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVED COMMCORUNNA AVE

12/26/2023 01/25/2024ENF 23-1220 LETTER SENT 11/13/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NCORUNNA AVE

12/05/2023ENF 23-1237 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVED COMMCORUNNA AVE

12/05/2023ENF 23-1249 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVED COMMCORUNNA AVE

12/12/2023ENF 23-1250 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/12/2023RESOLVED YCORUNNA AVE

12/04/2023ENF 23-1251 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/04/2023 COMMCORUNNA AVE

12/04/2023 01/10/2024ENF 23-1252 LETTER SENT 11/16/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMCORUNNA AVE

12/11/2023ENF 23-1223 CLOSED 11/13/2023 12/11/2023RESOLVED NCORUNNA AVE

12/05/2023ENF 23-1235 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVED VACCORUNNA AVE



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

10/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

12/05/2023ENF 23-1235 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVEDCORUNNA AVE

12/11/2023ENF 23-1222 CLOSED 11/13/2023 12/11/2023RESOLVED NCORUNNA AVE

12/05/2023ENF 23-1246 CLOSED 11/16/2023 12/05/2023RESOLVED YCORUNNA AVE

Total Entries 28

LEAVES

12/04/2023ENF 23-1267 CLOSED 11/20/2023 12/04/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NADA ST

Total Entries 1

LIGHTING VIOLATION

12/20/2023 01/17/2024ENF 23-1276
CONTACT WITH
BUSINESS 11/21/2023E INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMMAIN ST

12/27/2023ENF 23-1315 CLOSED 11/29/2023 12/27/2023E RESOLVED COMMMAIN ST

Total Entries 2

MISC.

01/03/2024ENF 23-1402 CLOSED 12/26/2023 01/03/2024RESOLVED NHANOVER ST

Total Entries 1

MULTIPLE VIOLATIONS

12/04/2023 03/07/2024ENF 22-1492 RECHECK SCHEDULED 11/02/2022INSPECTED PROPERTY NWOODLAWN AVE

12/15/2023 02/15/2024ENF 23-1344 EXTENSION GRANTED 12/11/2023CONTACT WITH OWNER NALGER AVE

12/28/2023 01/09/2024ENF 23-1263 FINAL NOTICE 11/20/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY YALGER AVE

01/03/2024 01/10/2024ENF 23-1396 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 12/20/2023LETTER SENT NHARRISON AVE

01/04/2024 01/04/2024ENF 23-1389 2ND NOTICE SENT 12/19/2023LETTER SENT NABREY AVE

01/03/2024ENF 23-1390 CLOSED 12/19/2023 01/03/2024RESOLVED NHARRISON AVE

12/20/2023 01/08/2024ENF 23-1394 LETTER SENT 12/20/2023LETTER SENT NMARY ST

12/06/2023 02/06/2024ENF 22-0522 EXTENSION GRANTED 04/29/2022W CONTACT WITH OWNER NMAIN ST



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

11/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

12/14/2023ENF 23-1202 CLOSED 11/08/2023 12/14/2023RESOLVED NDIMMICK ST

12/13/2023 06/19/2024ENF 23-1365 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/13/2023W LETTER SENT NSTEWART ST

12/28/2023 01/11/2024ENF 22-0393
CONTACTED PROPERTY
OWNER

04/01/2022INSPECTED PROPERTY NFLETCHER ST

12/12/2023 01/11/2024ENF 23-0156 3RD TICKET ISSUED 02/16/2023S INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

12/27/2023 01/09/2024ENF 23-0833 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 08/03/2023W INSPECTED PROPERTY NMAIN ST

12/18/2023 01/25/2024ENF 23-1108 1ST TICKET ISSUED 10/17/2023W LETTER SENT NMAIN ST

01/02/2024 04/30/2024ENF 23-1414 EXTENSION GRANTED 12/28/2023
CONTACT WITH
OCCUPANT

YJEROME AVE

12/27/2023ENF 23-1281 CLOSED 11/21/2023 12/27/2023RESOLVED NYOUNG ST

12/12/2023 02/05/2024ENF 23-1358 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/12/2023N LETTER SENT NHICKORY ST

01/04/2024 01/04/2024ENF 23-1398 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 12/20/2023N INSPECTED PROPERTY NHICKORY ST

12/06/2023ENF 23-1285 CLOSED 11/22/2023 12/06/2023RESOLVED YWALNUT ST

12/13/2023 01/17/2024ENF 23-1334 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/05/2023N LETTER SENT YSHIAWASSEE ST

12/12/2023 06/13/2024ENF 23-1354 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/12/2023N LETTER SENT YSAGINAW ST

12/28/2023 01/09/2024ENF 23-1340 LETTER SENT 12/11/2023N INSPECTED PROPERTY YSAGINAW ST

12/07/2023 01/11/2024ENF 20-0917 REF TO CITY ATTY 11/03/2020W INSPECTED PROPERTY NEXCHANGE

12/20/2023 01/09/2024ENF 23-0161 2ND TICKET ISSUED 02/20/2023N INSPECTED PROPERTY NSAGINAW ST

12/14/2023 01/11/2024ENF 22-1488 1ST TICKET ISSUED 11/01/2022N INSPECTED PROPERTY NWATER ST

12/26/2023 01/04/2024ENF 23-1387 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 12/19/2023N INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHESTNUT ST

12/04/2023ENF 23-1291 CLOSED 11/22/2023 12/04/2023RESOLVED NLAFAYETTE BLVD

12/06/2023ENF 23-1287 CLOSED 11/22/2023 12/06/2023E RESOLVED NKING ST



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

12/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

12/01/2023 01/16/2024ENF 22-0925 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/22/2022LEGAL ACTION VACMEADOW DR

12/11/2023ENF 23-1299 CLOSED 11/27/2023 12/11/2023RESOLVED YNAFUS ST

12/18/2023 01/18/2024ENF 22-1197 COURT ORDER 08/23/2022INSPECTED PROPERTY YOAKWOOD AVE

12/28/2023 01/29/2024ENF 22-0238 EXTENSION GRANTED 03/03/2022E INSPECTED PROPERTY NMAIN ST

12/13/2023 01/16/2024ENF 23-1279 LETTER SENT 11/21/2023W INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMSTEWART ST

12/12/2023 01/11/2024ENF 21-0966 RECHECK SCHEDULED 06/28/2021INSPECTED PROPERTY VACISHAM ST

12/28/2023 01/18/2024ENF 22-1543 FINAL NOTICE 11/16/2022W INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTEWART ST

12/27/2023 01/29/2024ENF 22-0883 LETTER SENT 06/15/2022S INSPECTED PROPERTY YCHIPMAN ST

12/14/2023 01/16/2024ENF 23-0425 FINAL NOTICE 05/16/2023S INSPECTED PROPERTY NCHIPMAN ST

01/03/2024 01/04/2024ENF 23-1388 LETTER SENT 12/19/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NCASS ST

12/28/2023 01/09/2024ENF 23-0886 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 08/21/2023S INSPECTED PROPERTY NWASHINGTON ST

12/28/2023 01/04/2024ENF 23-1413 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/28/2023S LETTER SENT NWASHINGTON ST

12/27/2023 01/29/2024ENF 21-1592 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 10/19/2021E INSPECTED PROPERTY NSTEWART ST

12/28/2023 01/08/2024ENF 23-0157 PARTIALLY RESOLVED 02/17/2023N INSPECTED PROPERTY YLANSING ST

12/11/2023 01/16/2024ENF 23-1346 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/11/2023S INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMSHIAWASSEE

12/14/2023 01/31/2024ENF 22-0356 REF TO CITY ATTY 03/25/2022INSPECTED PROPERTY NMILWAUKEE ST

12/12/2023 03/14/2024ENF 23-1352 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/12/2023N LETTER SENT NCHIPMAN ST

Total Entries 45

NO BUILDING PERMIT

10/30/2023ENF 23-1152 CLOSED 10/30/2023 12/05/2023S RESOLVED NSHIAWASSEE ST

01/02/2024ENF 23-1405 CLOSED 12/27/2023 01/02/2024OBTAINED PERMIT NCENTER ST



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

13/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

12/07/2023 01/08/2024ENF 23-0747 1ST TICKET ISSUED 07/19/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY NLYNN ST

Total Entries 3

RENTAL REGISTRATION

12/19/2023ENF 23-1380 CLOSED 12/14/2023 12/19/2023E NOT A RENTAL YEXCHANGE ST

12/01/2023 01/06/2024ENF 23-1323 LETTER SENT 12/01/2023N COMPLAINT LOGGED YDEWEY ST

12/20/2023 01/27/2024ENF 23-1400 LETTER SENT 12/20/2023LETTER SENT YBROADWAY AVE

Total Entries 3

ROW VIOLATIONS

12/27/2023 01/10/2024ENF 23-1406 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/27/2023LETTER SENT COMMALGER AVE

12/27/2023 01/04/2024ENF 23-1381 2ND NOTICE SENT 12/18/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY COMMCORUNNA AVE

Total Entries 2

SCRAPPING MATERIALS

12/20/2023 04/01/2024ENF 23-1095 EXTENSION GRANTED 10/11/2023W INSPECTED PROPERTY YEXCHANGE

Total Entries 1

SIDEWALK/SNOW & ICE

12/05/2023ENF 23-1336 CLOSED 12/05/2023 12/19/2023DUMMY FILE

12/26/2023 01/08/2024ENF 23-1374 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/14/2023E CONTACT WITH OWNER YEXCHANGE ST

Total Entries 2

SIGN VIOLATION

12/26/2023ENF 23-1348 CLOSED 12/11/2023 12/26/2023W RESOLVED COMMMAIN ST

12/26/2023ENF 23-1391 CLOSED 12/19/2023 12/26/2023S COMMWATER

Total Entries 2

TEMPORARY STRUCTURES



Last Action
Date Rental

Date
Closed

Next Action
DateFiledCurrent StatusPrevious StatusAddressEnf. Number

14/14Code Enforcement Activity01/04/24

DECEMBER 2023

12/12/2023 06/13/2024ENF 23-1357 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/12/2023S LETTER SENT NCEDAR ST

12/12/2023 06/12/2024ENF 23-1351 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/12/2023N LETTER SENT NSHIAWASSEE ST

12/06/2023 01/08/2024ENF 21-0380 EXTENSION GRANTED 03/11/2021INSPECTED PROPERTY NGRACE ST

12/28/2023 02/01/2024ENF 23-0658 2ND NOTICE SENT 06/29/2023N INSPECTED PROPERTY NCEDAR ST

Total Entries 4

TRAILER VIOLATIONS

12/11/2023 01/16/2024ENF 23-1347 RECHECK SCHEDULED 12/11/2023S INSPECTED PROPERTY NLANSING ST

Total Entries 1

TREE VIOLATIONS

12/12/2023 01/31/2024ENF 23-0905 REF TO DPW 08/23/2023INSPECTED PROPERTY VACMILWAUKEE ST

Total Entries 1

VACANT STRUCTURES

12/12/2023 01/17/2024ENF 20-0758 RECHECK SCHEDULED 09/18/2020INSPECTED PROPERTY VACPEARCE ST

Total Entries 1

Total Records: 228 Total Pages: 14



²³

!O

²³

!O!O

!O

!O

ø
Ü Å̧

!O

à
!O!O/

"T
!O

!O
!7à/

!O

!O/!O²³

!O /!O Å̧/!O²³ !O
²³ /

!O /

/ /²³!O !O
!O !O
/

²³!O !O

!O
"T

/²³/ !O"¼ O
/

O

²³

!O

N
 W

a
te

r 
S

t

N
 B

a
ll 

S
t

E Oliver St

N
 G

o
u

ld
 S

t

N
 P

a
rk

 S
t

N
 D

e
w

e
y 

S
t

M 21

N
 W

a
sh

in
g

to
n

 S
t

E Main St

N
 A

d
a

m
s 

S
t

P
in

e
 S

t

N
 S

a
g

in
a

w
 S

t

N
 S

h
ia

w
a

ss
e

e
 S

t

E Mason St

A
d

a
 S

t

K
ru

st
 D

r

E King St

N
 M

 5
2

Moore St

E Exchange St

N
 H

ic
ko

ry
 S

t

W King St

S
u

m
m

it 
S

t

W Main St

Ja
ck

so
n

 D
r

N
 O

a
k 

S
t

G
ilb

e
rt

 S
t

E Williams St

W North St

R
a

nd
o

lp
h

 S
t

H
u

nt
in

g
to

n
 D

r

N
 H

ic
ko

ry
 R

d

Queen St

D
im

m
ic

k 
S

t
W

ilt
sh

ir
e

 D
r

Abbott St

W Williams St

Clinton St

Stevens Dr

Brandon St

E North St

D
in

g
w

a
ll 

D
r

Stratford Dr

Bradley St

Velma Dr

Lee St

Kiwanis Village Dr

W Wesley Dr

River St

R
u

be
lm

a
n

 D
r

S W
ater St

E Comstock St

E
lm

w
o

o
d

 S
t

C
h

er
ry

la
w

n
 S

t

M
a

lla
rd

 C
ir

S
 B

a
ll 

S
t

E Wesley Dr

Avon Dr
S

 O
a

k 
S

t

S
 G

o
u

ld
 S

t

H
olly C

t

G
e

lla
tly

 C
t

Pintail Ct

N
 H

ic
ko

ry
 S

t

E North St

E Comstock St

Category
à Brush

²³ Building Violation

ø Fence Violation

Å̧ Fire Damage

"T Furniture Outside

!O Garbage & Debris

!O Garbage/Junk In ROW

"¼ House Numbers

!7 Leaves

O Lighting Violation

/ Multiple Violations

Ü Scrapping Materials

à Temporary Structures

City of Owosso
Code Enforcement Activity

December 2023
NE Quadrant

±0 300 600 900 1,200
Feet

Other Features
City Limit

Railroads

River & Lakes



²³

!O!O

!O

"¼

à/

²³

"¼

!O

"¼
"¼

à
"¼

²³ /

!7à//

!O
!O

!O

²³

²³

!O

// !O
!O

Ç
"¼/ !O

// g
/!O

²³ //

"¼

W Main St

W King St

M 21

C
le

ve
la

n
d

 A
ve

N
 C

h
ip

m
a

n
 S

t

N
 S

h
ia

w
a

ss
e

e
 S

t

A
d

a
 S

t

C
e

nt
e

r 
S

t

N
 M

 5
2

W North St

Young St

Bradley St

River St

Mason Rd

H
o

yt
 S

t

Clinton St
P

in
e

 S
t

N
 C

h
ip

m
a

n
 R

d

1s
t 

S
t

H
a

no
ve

r 
S

t
3r

d
 S

t

5t
h

 S
t

Lee St
7t

h
 S

t

Stinson St

Chipman Ln

Buckley Dr

Chippewa Trl

Hathaway Dr

Olmstead St

Babcock St

C
la

rk
 A

ve

W
a

rd
 S

t

N
 C

h
es

tn
u

t 
S

t

La
fa

ye
tt

e
 B

lv
d

M
e

a
d

o
w

 D
r

Harding St

N
 B

ro
ok

s 
S

t

Beehler St

W
e

st
 S

t

N
 L

a
n

si
n

g
 S

t

Keifer St
N

 E
lm

 S
t

R
iverside D

r

W
ill

o
w

 S
t

Donald St

Marion St

W Oliver St

O
rc

h
a

rd
 S

t

Irene St

Sandra St

C
o

rle
tt

 D
r

S
ta

te
 S

t

Alturas Dr

N
 L

yo
n

 S
t

Willow

Kenneth St

S
p

ri
n

g
s 

D
r

S
 E

lm
 S

t

C
ur

w
oo

d 
D

r

E
lli

o
t 

S
t

Alta Vista Dr

H
iaw

atha D
r

R
o

bb
in

s 
S

t

S
 C

e
d

a
r 

S
t

W
oo

dh
al

l C
t

Bennett Field Dr

A
ld

e
n

 S
t

Cam
pb

el
l D

r

W King St

W
a

rd
 S

t

A
d

a
 S

t

Marion St

W Oliver St

Category
Ç Animals

à Brush

²³ Building Violation

!O Garbage & Debris

!O Garbage/Junk In ROW

"¼ House Numbers

!7 Leaves

Misc.

/ Multiple Violations

²³ No Building Permit

g Sign Violation

à Temporary Structures

City of Owosso
Code Enforcement Activity

December 2023
NW Quadrant

±0 300 600 900 1,200
Feet

Other Features
City Limit

Railroads

River & Lakes



!O

²³

Å̧̧Å

²³

"¼

!O

ø
Ü Å̧

/ _̀

²³

!O
"T

/²³/ !O"¼ O
/

O

!O
/

89:D
"¼

!O

²³

!O!O ²³ / /Å̧

²³"¼"¼/ "¼"¼"¼- !O!O / "¼"¼/ !O"¼
!O"¼²³²³ /

"¼!O!O "¼/!O "¼ /!O
"¼!O

/!O /!O !O ///
/

89:D

")

7

"¼

!O¶ ²³

²³
!O

//j
/!O "T

"¼

Å̧

"¼

g

"¼

Monroe St

Corunna Ave

M 21
E Main St

S
 G

o
u

ld
 S

t

S
 S

h
ia

w
a

ss
e

e
 S

t

P
a

lm
er

 A
ve

Vandekarr R
d

Farr Ave

Gute St

Grover St

G
ra

n
d

 A
ve

Li
n

g
le

 A
ve

Jerome Ave

E Comstock St

E Exchange St

A
lg

e
r 

A
ve

Cass St

S
 W

a
sh

in
g

to
n

 S
t

W Main St

W
o

o
dl

a
w

n
 A

ve

M
cM

ill
a

n
 A

ve

S
 P

a
rk

 S
t

E Howard St

B
ro

a
d

w
a

y 
A

ve

W Stewart St
D

iv
is

io
n

 S
t

C
o

ok
 R

d

O
akw

ood A
ve

Li
n

co
ln

 A
ve

Allendale Ave

Prindle St

G
le

n
w

o
o

d
 A

ve

S 
M

 5
2

S
 B

a
ll 

S
t

Clinton St

S
 S

a
g

in
a

w
 S

t

Genesee St

F
ra

ze
r A

ve

E South St

S
 O

a
k 

S
t

W Ridge St

Grace St

Industrial Dr

B
u

lla
rd

 D
r

N
 P

a
rk

 S
t

Keyte St

S
 E

lm
 S

t

S W
ater St

W
ri

g
ht

 A
ve B

e
ck

 A
ve

M
a

y 
S

t

Melinda St

Hopkins Lake Dr

R
ow

le
y 

S
t

Bradley St

Cornell Rd

S
 H

ic
ko

ry
 S

t

College Ln

A
b

re
y 

A
ve

B
ye

rl
y 

S
t

B
aker D

r

Huron St

Ryan St

M
ic

h
ig

a
n

 A
ve

R
a

w
le

ig
h

 A
ve

Clyde St

Jo
h

n
so

n
 S

t

H
a

rr
is

o
n

 A
ve

N
 B

a
ll 

S
t

Ament St

N
 O

a
k 

S
t

H
o

lli
d

a
y 

A
ve

S
m

ith
 S

t

Fletcher St

H
ug

gi
ns

 S
t

G
a

rf
ie

ld
 A

ve

M
ap

le
 A

ve

Himburg Dr

Huron St

Jerome Ave

Farr Ave

S
 P

a
rk

 S
t

S
 B

a
ll 

S
t

Grover St

E Comstock St

A
b

re
y 

A
ve

Category
²³ Accessory Structures

²³ Building Violation

7 Exterior Paint/Siding

ø Fence Violation

Å̧ Fire Damage

j Front Yard Parking

"T Furniture Outside

!O Garbage & Debris

") Garbage Cans

!O Garbage/Junk In ROW

- Health & Safety

"¼ House Numbers

_̀ Imminent Danger Of Structure

O Lighting Violation

/ Multiple Violations

²³ No Building Permit

¶ Rental Registration

89:D ROW Violations

g Sign Violation

City of Owosso
Code Enforcement Activity

December 2023
SE Quadrant

±0 300 600 900 1,200
Feet

Other Features
City Limit

Railroads

River & Lakes



Å̧̧Å
/

²³

!O

²³

à/

²³

/4

!O j

Ç
"¼/ !O

// g

/

/!O

à
²³

²³ //
7 !O

Å̧

/ /
/ !O !O!O

/

E/!O ²³

//
!O/

E /

E
!O 4

!O!O /
!O

!O
²³

/

Å̧
!O ²³

à

!¼

W South St

W Main St

W Stewart St

S
 C

h
ip

m
an

 S
t

S
 C

e
d

a
r 

S
t

M 21

S
 C

h
e

st
n

ut
 S

t

W
a

ln
u

t S
t

Ryan St

S 
M

 5
2

S
 S

h
ia

w
a

ss
e

e
 S

t

Henry St

Frederick St

Grace St

Lynn St

T
ra

cy
 S

t

Young St

Bradley St

Cass St

Fletcher St

Ament St

N
a

fu
s 

S
t

S
ta

te
 S

t

Clinton St

Bock St

H
e

le
n

a
 S

t

S
 P

e
a

rc
e

 S
t

Hampton St

M
a

rt
in

 S
t

K
e

n
w

o
o

d
 D

r

C
a

rr
 S

t

N
e

ls
o

n 
S

t

S
 L

yo
n

 S
tIs
h

a
m

 S
t

G
e

o
rg

e
 S

t

E
tt

a
 S

t

Hiram St

S
 E

lm
 S

t

R
o

bb
in

s 
S

t

Roslyn Dr

Roby St

A
sh

 S
t

Clyde St

Mack St

Keifer St

Renfrew Dr

H
a

m
m

o
n

t 
S

t

Donald St

Krouse Rd

C
ov

en
tr

y 
C

t

Herman St

H
op

ki
ns

 L
ak

e 
D

r

Gute St

W
a

b
a

ss
e

e
 D

r

H
o

yt
 S

t

Rain St

Mary St

Milwaukee St

W
ilk

in
so

n
 S

t

S
 L

a
n

si
n

g
 S

t

Calvert St

E
lli

o
t 

S
t

N
 E

lm
 S

t

Dowling Dr

Prindle St

M
o

rr
is

 S
t

Gregory St

S
ta

te
 S

t

Clyde St

S
ta

te
 S

t

Lynn St

S
ta

te
 S

t
Herman St

Is
h

a
m

 S
t

G
e

o
rg

e
 S

t

Lynn St

N
a

fu
s 

S
t

Category
Ç Animals

4 Appliances

E Auto Repair/Junk Vehicle

à Brush

²³ Building Violation

7 Exterior Paint/Siding

Å̧ Fire Damage

j Front Yard Parking

!O Garbage & Debris

!O Garbage/Junk In ROW

"¼ House Numbers

/ Multiple Violations

²³ No Building Permit

g Sign Violation

à Temporary Structures

!¼ Trailer Violations

²³ Vacant Structures

City of Owosso
Code Enforcement Activity

December 2023
SW Quadrant

±0 300 600 900 1,200
Feet

Other Features
City Limit

Railroads

River & Lakes



 
HISSONG, BRAD BUILDING OFFICIAL

Total Inspections: 4

SUB - BUILDING OFFICIAL
Total Inspections: 29

SUB - BUILDING OFFICIAL
Total Inspections: 7

PUNG, ROY MECHANICAL & PLUMBING INSPECTOR
Total Inspections: 20

HARRIS, JON ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR
Total Inspections: 12

 
FREEMAN, GREG CODE ENFORCEMENT

Total Inspections: 108

MAYBAUGH, BRAD CODE ENFORCEMENT
Total Inspections: 178

Grand Total Inspections: 358

Monthly Inspection List
DECEMBER 2023



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
ADULT USE RECREATIONAL RETAIL 

2 1 3
$10,000 $5,000 $15,000

AMPHITHEATER
1 1 9 11

$50 $0 $0 $50
BENTLEY PARK RENTAL

11 6 8 5 11 1 0 3 2 47
$275 $150 $225 $150 $300 $25 $0 $50 $75 $1,250

GROWER LICENSE (Medical)
1 1 2

$5,000 $5,000 $10,000
HARMON PATRIDGE PARK RENTAL

3 2 1 4 17 7 7 4 1 46
$75 $50 $50 $100 $550 $225 $175 $125 $25 $1,375

MOBILE FOOD VENDING (Food Truck License)
1 1

$150 $150
PROCESSOR LICENSE

1 1
$5,000 $5,000

PROVISIONING CENTER
2 1 3

$10,000 $5,000 $15,000
RECREATIONAL GROW

1 1 1 3
$5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $15,000

RENTAL (Renewals)
2 3 4 6 4 3 81 85 35 85 308

$100 $150 $200 $300 $200 $150 $16,850 $10,500 $5,250 $9,550 $43,250
RENTAL REGISTRATIONS (New)

1 3 4 1 2 11 4 3 3 4 36
$50 $100 $150 $50 $100 $550 $150 $150 $300 $100 $1,700

RESIDENTIAL DESIGNATED PARKING
1 1 2

$840 $840 $1,680
TOTALS:

19 16 17 10 36 22 17 19 90 90 38 89 463
$6,340 $10,450 $625 $300 $1,250 $1,840 $25,375 $325 $27,100 $20,650 $5,550 $9,650 $109,455

CERTIFICATES & LICENSES ISSUED BY MONTH FOR 2023



 
 

OWOSSO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
202 S. WATER ST.  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  (989) 725-0580  FAX (989)725-0528 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  

DATE:   10 January 2024  
TO:   Owosso City Council 
FROM:   Eric E. Cherry 
 Police Department Captain 
RE:   December 2024 Police Activity Report 
 
 
Master Plan Goal 3.1, 3.2 
 

The Investigative Services Bureau attended the monthly multidisciplinary meeting for all forensic interviews 
conducted.  This is where investigators, CPS, Voices for Children and Shiawassee County Prosecutors discuss where each 
case is at of the reported sexual assault investigations. 

Our Comprehensive Opioid, Stimulant and Substance Use Program (COSSUP) team met on multiple occasions 
and also completed some field work with persons that were effected by overdose.  

Members of the department attended two (2) “Shop with a Hero” events in December: one at Walmart and one at 
Meijer. 

Investigators from the department assisted the Shiawassee County Human Oppression Team (SHOT) in an 
operation to arrest persons trying to meet up with underage individuals.  This operation was in various locations 
throughout the county, one (1) arrest was made in the City of Owosso. 

 
 

December - 5 YEAR AVERAGE 
 

 2019-Dec 2020-Dec 2021-Dec 2022-Dec 2023-Dec Dec 5YR AVG 

Part I Crimes 26 24 32 15 37 26.8 

Part II Crimes 59 60 73 78 91 72.2 

Violent Crimes 7 7 11 3 8 7.2 

Total Reports 148 157 154 149 174 156.4 

Felony Arrests 3 8 8 3 6 5.6 

Total Arrests 19 24 23 35 36 27.4 

Traffic Stops 88 72 33 192 112 99.4 

All Dispatched Events 567 530 881 991 921 778 

 
 
 

 



LAST 12 MONTHS 
 

 

2023-
Jan 

2023-
Feb 

2023-
Mar 

2023-
Apr 

2023-
May 

2023-
Jun 

2023-
Jul 

2022-
Aug 

2023-
Sep 

2023-
Oct 

2023-
Nov 

2023-
Dec 

Last 12 
Months Average 

Part I Crimes 20 16 26 23 31 34 30 26 25 29 26 37 323 26.92 

Part II Crimes 71 71 96 95 129 85 111 99 97 80 88 91 1113 92.75 

Violent Crimes 5 5 4 7 6 11 12 7 10 3 15 8 93 7.75 

Total Reports 141 133 170 183 194 179 202 178 184 176 154 174 2068 172.33 

Felony Arrests 8 7 8 5 6 6 10 7 8 4 4 6 79 6.58 

Total Arrests 44 33 39 31 40 36 45 31 45 34 22 36 436 36.33 

Traffic Stops 213 222 130 151 78 58 82 100 63 80 78 112 1367 113.92 

All Dispatched 
Events 1071 1006 969 1004 1061 898 903 915 886 1003 942 921 11579 964.92 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 301  W .  MA IN    OWOSSO,  M ICHIGAN 48867 -2958   ( 989 )  725 -0599  

 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:   January 8, 2024 
 
TO:   Owosso City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart   
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   December 2023 Fire & Ambulance Report 
 
 
 
Attached are the statistics for the Owosso Fire Department (OFD) for December 2023. The 
Owosso Fire Department responded to 239 incidents in the month of December. 
  
OFD responded to 20 fire calls and responded to 219 EMS calls.  
 
  
 
  
 

 
  



Previous Month  Dec 1, 2023  -  Dec 31, 2023 

Dec 2 Dec 4 Dec 6 Dec 8 Dec 10 Dec 12 Dec 14 Dec 16 Dec 18 Dec 20 Dec 22 Dec 24 Dec 26 Dec 28 Dec 30

0

5

10

2.5

7.5

12.5

2020 2021 2022 2023

Week Ending 12/3/23 12/10/23 12/17/23 12/24/23 12/31/23 1/7/24 1/14/24 1/21/24 1/28/24 2/4/24 2/11/24 2/18/24 2/25/24 Total

(10) Fire, other 1 1

(11) Structure
Fire 1 1 2

(15) Outside
rubbish fire 1 1

(30) Rescue,
emergency
medical call
(EMS), other

2 2

(32) Emergency
medical
service (EMS)
incident

20 49 50 42 56 217

(35) Extrication,
rescue 1 1

(41)
Combustible/f…
spills & leaks

1 1

(42) Chemical
release,
reaction, or
toxic condition

1 1

(57) Cover
assignment,
standby at fire
station, move-
up

1 1

(60) Good
intent call,
other

1 1

(61)
Dispatched
and canceled
en route

1 1 2

(65) Steam,
other gas
mistaken for
smoke

1 1

(70) False
alarm and
false call, other

1 1 2

(74)
Unintentional
system/detect…
operation (no
fire)

1 2 3 6

8%
FIRE
Percentage of Total
Incidents

92%
EMS
Percentage of Total
Incidents

239
INCIDENTS
In Selected Time Slice

31
DAYS
In Selected Time Slice

   Counts % Rows % Columns % All

   
A N A L Y T I C S

Total Record Volume by Incident Type

Page 1 of 2



Week Ending 12/3/23 12/10/23 12/17/23 12/24/23 12/31/23 1/7/24 1/14/24 1/21/24 1/28/24 2/4/24 2/11/24 2/18/24 2/25/24 Total

Total 20 56 56 47 60 239

Page 2 of 2



 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF THE  
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY/OWOSSO MAIN STREET 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
  

January 3, 2024, AT 7:30 A.M. 

CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Chair Jon Moore at 7:35 A.M. 

ROLL CALL:  Taken by Chair Jon Moore 

PRESENT:  Chair Jon Moore, Vice-Chair Lance Omer, Commissioners Daylen Howard, Allié McGuire, 
Robert J. Teich, Jr., Nicole Reyna and Bill Gilbert. Commissioner Josh Ardelean arrived at 7:54 A.M. 
  
ABSENT:  Commissioner Emily Olson 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Lizzie Fredrick, DDA/OMS Director 
 
AGENDA:  

MOVED BY GILBERT, SUPPORTED BY MCGUIRE TO APPROVE THE JANUARY 3, 2024 DDA/OMS 
AGENDA AS PRESENTED. 
AYES:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
MINUTES:   
 
MOVED BY HOWARD, SUPPORTED BY REYNA TO APPROVE THE DECEMBER 6, 2023 DDA/OMS 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES. 
AYE:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None.  
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS:  Fredrick presented the financial reports and answered questions. 
 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS: 

 
1. BOARD MEMBER AGREEMENT & JOB DESCRIPTION:  Moore presented the Board 

Member Agreement and Job Description and asked the Board to sign the agreement. 
 
Gilbert discussed the agreement and job description helping with Board Member onboarding. 
 

2. FY23-24 BUDGET AMENDMENTS:  Fredrick reviewed the proposed budget amendments 
highlighting the payoff of the DDA Revolving Loan Debt and that changes in programing, 
estimated revenue and estimated expenses will decrease the anticipated expenditures from 
the Fund Balance by approximately $5,000. 
 
MOVED BY HOWARD, SUPPORTED BY GILBERT TO APPROVE THE FISCALYEAR 
2023-2024 BUDGET AMENDMENTS AS PRESENTED. 
AYES:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. DOWNTOWN PARKING:  Fredrick presented the proposed street parking updates and 
highlighted an error in the memorandum. 
 



 

Fredrick confirmed that the parallel parking spot to be removed is on W. Comstock Street 
instead of W. Exchange Street. 
 
MOVED BY HOWARD, SUPPORTED BY OMER TO APPROVE THE REMOVAL OF THE 
PARALELL PARKING SPOT ON W. COMSTOCK STREET NEXT TO THE EAST BOUND 
STOP SIGN AND UPDATING THE 15-MINUTE PARALLEL PARKING SPOTS ON PARK 
STREET AND E. COMSTOCK STREET TO A 2-HOUR PARKING LIMIT.  
AYES:  ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
COMMITTEE UPDATES: 

1. Organization:  Moore reviewed the December Organization Committee minutes including 
updates on the Board Member Agreement, the creation of a Volunteer Appreciation Program and 
Community Newsletter. 

2. Economic Vitality:  Howard announced the Match on Main grant opportunity and shared that the 
Economic Vitality Committee needs a member from a traditional lending institution. 

3. Promotion:  Fredrick provided a recap of the New Year’s Eve event and updated the Board on 
the Chocolate Walk and Hype Team. 

4. Design:  Fredrick reviewed the December Design Committee minutes including updates on the 
Fountain Park Summer Expansion and Bridge Basket Program. 

 
DIRECTOR UPDATES:  Fredrick notified the Board that the Lapeer DDA and Main Street Board will be 
visiting Downtown Owosso on January 20th for their Board retreat and reminded the Board she’ll be gone 
at the beginning of May for the Main Street National Conference. 
 
BOARD COMMENTS:  None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 

MOVED BY GILBERT, SUPPORTED BY TEICH TO ADJOURN AT 8:49 A.M. 
AYES: ALL 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

NEXT MEETING FEBRUARY 7, 2024. 


	AGENDA
	ZoomNOTICE

	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	240102CouncilMinutes

	PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	1. Chief of Police Commendations

	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	CONSENT AGENDA
	1. SpecialAssessmentDistrictNo2024-01
	2. ChangeOrder-WWTPImprovementsProject-Phase1
	3. MDOTCostSharingAgreement-StewartStreet
	4. WarrantNo639

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	1. Closed Session

	COMMUNICATIONS
	1. BuildingDepartmentReport-December2023
	2. CodeEnforcementReport-December2023
	3. InspectionsReport-December2023
	4. CertificatesIssuedReport-December2023
	5. PoliceReport-December2023
	6. Fire Report-December2023
	7. DDAMinutes 1.3.24

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	CLOSED SESSION
	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT



